
1 

GOLDSBORO	CITY	COUNCIL		
REGULAR	MEETING	AGENDA		
MONDAY,	DECEMBER	16,	2019		
 

(Please	turn	off,	or	silence,	all	cellphones	upon	entering	the	Council	Chambers)	
	
I. WORK	SESSION–5:00	P.M.	–	CITY	HALL	ADDITION,	200	N.	CENTER	ST.,	ROOM	206 

	

ADOPTION	OF	THE	AGENDA 
	

PRESENTATIONS	
a. Forensic Audit Processes, Mike Womble (CPA, ABV, CVA, MAFF, CFF, ASA, CGMA)  

	

OLD	BUSINESS	
b. Boards and Commissions Discussion (City Clerk) 
 

NEW	BUSINESS	
c. Memorial Marker Policy Discussion (Parks and Recreation) *Attachment	Included 
d. Lease of City-Owned Property-Arnold Flowers (City Manager) *Attachment	Included 
e. Council Committees Discussion (Mayor Pro Tem) 
 

II. CALL	TO	ORDER	–	7:00	P.M.	–	COUNCIL	CHAMBERS,	214	N.	CENTER	ST. 
Invocation (Archbishop Anthony Slater, Tehillah Church Ministries)  
Pledge of Allegiance  

 

III. ROLL	CALL 
 

IV. APPROVAL	OF	MINUTES (*Motion/Second) 
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of November 18, 2019  

 

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B.  Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by GiGi Eason as an Employee of the City of 

Goldsboro for More Than 30 Years 
C.  Resolution Expressing Appreciation to Julie Metz for Service to the City of Goldsboro for More Than 24 

Years 
 

VI. PUBLIC	HEARINGS	(*Motion/Second)	
D. CU-13-19 Jerry Futrell – East side of US 117 South between Arrington Bridge Road and South George 

Street (Increase in electronic gaming machines from 35 to 101 for existing Internet Café) (Planning) 
E. CU-14-19 Zackell Perry – Southwest corner of E. Oak Street and N. John Street intersection.  (Used 

Automobile Sales) (Planning) 
PLANNING	COMMISSION	EXCUSED	
F. Non-contiguous Annexation Request –Luis Jimenez (East side of S. NC 111 Hwy between Mollie Drive 

and Sheridan Forest Road) 1.98 Acres (Planning) 
G. Public Hearing to Consider an Incentive Grant Agreement with Michael Aram, Inc. and Wayne County 

(City Manager) 
 

VII. PUBLIC	COMMENT	PERIOD	(TIME	LIMIT	OF	3	MINUTES	PER	SPEAKER) 
 

VIII. CONSENT	AGENDA	ITEMS (*Motion/Second‐‐Roll	Call) 
H. CU-12-19 Henry Battle - East side of S. James Street between Spruce Street and Pine Street (Planning) 



2 

I. Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for Surplus Real Property 
(Finance) 

J. Budget Amendment - 2019-2020 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment 
Partnerships Programs (HOME) (Community Relations)  

K. Change Order No. 13 - Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation-Formal Bid No. 2018-004 
(Engineering) 

L. Departmental Monthly Reports  
 

IX. ITEMS	REQUIRING	INDIVIDUAL	ACTION (*Motion/Second) 
 

X. CITY	MANAGER’S	REPORT 
 

XI. MAYOR	AND	COUNCILMEMBERS’	REPORTS	AND	RECOMMENDATIONS 
M. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Roosevelt Johnson as an Employee of the 

City of Goldsboro for More Than 27 Years 
N. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Reginald Hedrick as an Employee of the 

City of Goldsboro for More Than 24 Years 
 

XII. CLOSED	SESSION 
 

XIII. ADJOURN 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Goldsboro City Council Members 

FR: Felicia Brown, Interim Parks and Recreation Director 

SU: Memorial Marker Policy  

DA: December 11, 2019 

Please find attached our Marker Memorial Policy and the current resolution 
approved by the Goldsboro City Council on August 16, 2004.  Per the policy, the 
Recreation Advisory Commission “reserves the right to approve or disapprove any 
or all proposals.  Appeal of a decision of the Recreation and Parks Advisory 
Commission shall be made in writing directly to the Goldsboro City Council.” 

Staff is endorsing this policy be changed to read “upon appearing before the 
Recreation Advisory Commission for a recommendation, the proposal will be 
brought before the Goldsboro City Council for final approval.” 

Staff is also interested in Council’s opinion on eligibility requirements to receive a 
marker or memorial in one of our parks. 

WS Item c

















WS Item _______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

DECEMBER 16, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Lease of City-Owned Property-Arnold Flowers  

BACKGROUND: The City has acquired property under the Hazard Mitigation 
Grant Program. As a part of this program, the City is 
required to maintain the property. Arnold Flowers owns 
property on Arrington Bridge Road, which is adjacent to 
parcels owned by the City.  Mr. Flowers also leased land 
from the city in 2002.   

DISCUSSION: Mr. Flowers proposes leasing the lots on Arrington Bridge 
Road (PIN#3507149748), Pecan Road (PIN#2597967216) 
and Casey Mill Road (PIN#3507403670) at no cost provided 
he complies with the terms of the Hazard Mitigation 
Program and maintains the property in an acceptable manner. 
Mr. Flowers is requesting to use the property for the purpose 
of growing and harvesting timber and pulpwood. The lease 
provides for a 6 month written notice of termination from 
either party; however, the term of the lease shall not exceed 
40 years.     

RECOMMENDATION: This is a discussion item to see if Council would like to 
proceed with the lease. Staff will come back at the next 
meeting with an agenda item and resolution if Council would 
like to proceed. 

Date:  _______________________ ____________________________________ 
Randy Guthrie, Assistant City Manger  

Date:  _______________________ ____________________________________ 
Tim Salmon, City Manager 

d



 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  

COUNTY OF WAYNE 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made this the            day of  , 20__, by and 

between the CITY OF GOLDSBORO, hereinafter called "LESSOR"; and FLOWERS 
TIMBER & LAND, INC. hereinafter called "LESSEE". 

 
W I T N E S S E T H: 

 
WHEREAS, Lessee desires to lease three parcels of real property which are 

owned in fee simple by Lessor and are more particularly as follows ; Parcel  #  1 situated 
on the Arrington Bridge Road, containing 5.58 acres more or less and PIN # being 
3507149748; Parcel # 2 situated on the Pecan Road, containing  8.35 acres more or 
less and PIN# being 2597967216, and parcel# 3 situated on the Casey Mill Road, 
containing 5.86 acres more or less and PIN # being 3507403670. All three parcels being 
located in Wayne County, North Carolina and PIN numbers being of the Wayne County, 
NC tax office for a more complete description. 

WHEREAS, the above mentioned property is a parcel of land the City of 
Goldsboro purchased under the Hazard Mitigation Properties Program; 

WHEREAS, FEMA has placed restrictions upon the use of parcels of land 
purchased under the Hazard Mitigation Properties Program as listed in Book 1824 
Pages 693, 694, and 695 of the Wayne County Registry; 

WHEREAS, Lessor desires to lease the above parcel of land to the Lessee 
subject to certain restrictions; 

WHEREAS, Lessee agrees to abide by the restrictions that the City of Goldsboro 
has placed upon its use of the property. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual promises 

herein contained, as well as in consideration of the mutual benefits to be derived by each 
of them and of other good and valuable considerations, receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged by each of the parties hereto, Lessor does hereby demise and lease unto 
Lessee, and Lessee does hereby accept as the tenant of Lessor, upon the terms and 
conditions hereinafter set out, the following described real property situated in Wayne 
County, North Carolina. 

 

1. TERM. The term of the Lease shall begin on the 1st day of  , 
20__, and it shall continue until either party gives the other party six (6) months written 
notice of said termination. Termination shall be effective six (6) months from the date of 
notice. Upon termination, Lessee shall release and vacate the demised premises. 
However, the term of the lease shall not exceed 40 years.   

 

2. RENT. Lessee shall not be required pay rent to Lessor for the use of the 
demised property, as long as Lessee maintains the property and does not breach any 
other condition of this agreement. Lessee shall be unconditionally liable to Lessor for any 



 

cost of repairing any damage caused to the demised premises by Lessee. 
 

3. USE OF DEMISED PREMISES. The premises are to be used and occupied 
by Lessee for the purpose of growing and harvesting timber and pulpwood. Lessee shall 
at all times fully and properly comply with all laws, ordinances, and regulations governing the use 
of the premises enacted or adopted by every lawful authority having jurisdiction over the same. 
The Lessee agrees to comply with all Neuse River buffer rules and shall prescribe to the “Best 
Management Practices” and the “Sustainable Forestry Initiative” in the management and harvest 
of said forest. It is further understood that Lessee may harvest any existing timber, pulpwood or 
yard trees upon said tracts for the purpose of reestablishing tracts in a more productive tree 
farm. 

 

4. LESSEE'S COVENANT TO MAINTAIN. During the full term of this Lease, 
Lessee will, at its own expense, keep and maintain in good order all parts of the demised 
premises, including without limitation, and keeping the premises clean of any debris 
which are in conflict with any other provision or covenant of this agreement. Lessee may 
maintain a gate at the entryways. 

 

5. SURRENDER OF PREMISES. Lessee covenants and agrees to surrender 
the premises at the end of the term in as good as the premises were received, excepting 
only ordinary wear and tear from harvest of existing timber. If any pre-merchantable 
timber or pulpwood exist on tract or if Lessor wishes tract to be uncut at the termination 
of lease, a mutually acceptable NC Registered Consulting Forester shall be employed 
to determine its value. Lessor shall compensate Lessee for any existing timber or 
pulpwood at its appraised value. Lessor shall compensate Lessee for any existing timber 
or pulpwood at its appraised value. Lessee and Lessor shall each pay one-half the cost 
of the appraisal. 

 

6. LESSOR'S ENTRY. Lessor shall have the right to enter upon the demised 
premises at reasonable times during the term of this Lease for the purpose of inspection. 

 

7. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASE. Lessee may not assign this Lease or 
sublet the demised premises or any portion thereof without the prior written consent of 
Lessor which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 

8. DEFAULT. If Lessee shall continue in default of any provision of this Lease 
for a period of ten (10) days after notice of such default has been given to Lessee and 
does not remedy such default within thirty (30) days after written notice thereof or does 
not within such thirty (30) days commence such act or acts as shall be necessary to 
remedy such default, then in any such event Lessor shall have the right and option to 
terminate this Lease and shall have the immediate right of reentry to remove all persons 
and property from the demised premises, all without resort to legal process and without 
being deemed guilty of trespass. Lessee shall restore the demised premises to 
substantially the same condition in which it was at the time the Lessee took possession, 
ordinary wear and tear and accepted. 



 

9. REMEDIES, CUMULATIVE - NONWAIVER. No remedy herein or 
otherwise conferred upon or reserved to Lessor or Lessee shall be considered exclusive 
of any other remedy, but the same shall be distinct, separate and cumulative and shall 
be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder, or now or thereafter existing at law 
or in equity or by status; and every power and remedy given by this Lease to Lessor or 
Lessee may be exercised from time to time as often as necessary for Lessor or Lessee 
to exercise any right or power arising from any default on the part of the other and such 
action shall not impair any such right or power, nor shall such action be construed to be 
a waiver of such default or an acquiescence thereto. 

 

10. HOLDING OVER. If Lessee remains in possession of the demised 
premises or any part thereof after the expiration of the term of this Lease with Lessor's 
acquiescence and without any written agreement of the parties, Lessee shall be only a 
tenant at will, and there shall be no renewal of this Lease or exercise of an option by 
operation of law. 

 

11. WARRANTY. Lessor covenants and represents that it is the owner of the 
demised premises and that Lessee shall peacefully and quietly hold and enjoy the 
demised premises for the full term hereof so long as it does not default in the 
performance of any of its covenants hereunder. 

 

12. CORPORATE STATUS. Lessor is a municipal corporation, duly organized, 
and validly existing under the laws of the State of North Carolina, and prior to the 
execution of said lease, shall be qualified to do business in, and in good standing, under 
the laws of the State of North Carolina. Lessee is a corporation, duly organized, and 
validly existing under the laws of the State of North Carolina, and prior to the execution 
of said lease, shall be qualified to do business in, and in good standing, under the laws 
of the State of North Carolina. 

 

13. AUTHORIZATION. Lessee has full power and authority to execute and 
deliver this Lease and all related documents, and to carry out the transactions 
contemplated herein. This Lease is valid, binding and enforceable against Lessee in 
accordance with its terms. The execution of this Lease and the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated herein will not result in a breach of its terms or conditions or, 
constitute a default under, or violation of, any law, regulation, court order, mortgage, note, 
bond, indenture, agreement, license or other instrument or obligation to which Lessee is 
a party or by which Lessee or any of the assets of Lessee may be bound or affected. 

 

14. COVENANT OF QUIET ENJOYMENT. Lessee, upon the performance of 
all the terms of the Lease, shall at all times during the leased term and extension as 
herein provided peaceably and quietly enjoy the demised premises without any 
disturbance from Lessor or from any other person claiming through Lessor. 

 

15. ACCEPTANCE OF PREMISES. Lessee accepts the premises “AS IS” and 
Lessor shall be bound by no representations touching or affecting the demised premises, 



 

or this agreement, that are not set forth herein, and it is expressly agreed that all 
representations relating to the demised premises or this agreement are included and set 
forth. 

 

16. NATURE AND EXTENT OF AGREEMENT. This instrument contains the 
complete agreement of the parties regarding the terms and conditions of the Lease of the 
demised premises, and there are no oral or written conditions terms, understandings or 
other agreements pertaining thereto which have not been incorporated herein. This 
instrument creates only the relationship of Lessor and Lessee between the parties hereto 
and shall not impose upon either party hereto any obligations or restrictions not herein 
expressly set forth. 

 

17. BINDING EFFECT. This Lease Agreement shall be binding upon and shall 
inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 

 

18. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this Agreement are severable, and the 
invalidity of any provision shall not affect the validity of any other provision. In the event 
that any court of competent jurisdiction shall determine that any provision of this 
Agreement or the application thereof is unenforceable because of the duration or scope 
thereof, the parties hereto agree that said court in making such determination shall have 
the power to reduce the duration and scope of such provision to the extent necessary to 
make it enforceable, and that the Agreement in its reduced form shall be valid and 
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 

19. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be subject to and governed by 
the laws of the State of North Carolina. 

 

20. MODIFICATION. No change, modification or waiver of any term of this 
Agreement shall be valid unless it is in writing and signed by both parties. 

 

21. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in two or more 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same Agreement. 

 

22. HEADINGS. The headings are inserted for convenience only and shall not 
be considered when interpreting any of the provisions or terms hereof. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Lessor has caused this Agreement to be signed, 

and Lessee has set its hand and seal, this the day and year first above written. 
 

THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, LESSOR 
 
 

BY:   (SEAL) 
MAYOR 



 

ATTEST: 
 
 

City Clerk 
 
 

FLOWERS TIMBER & LAND, INC., LESSEE: 
 

 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
WAYNE COUNTY 

BY:  (SEAL) 
President 

 

This the    day of  , 20__, personally came before me, 
  , a Notary Public in and for said State and County, 
MELISSA CAPPS, who by me duly sworn, says that she knows the common seal of the 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO and is acquainted with CHUCK ALLEN, who is the Mayor of 
said municipal corporation; that she, the said MELISSA CAPPS, is its Clerk; and that she 
saw the Mayor sign the foregoing instrument; and that she, the said Clerk, saw the said 
common seal of said corporation affixed thereto, and that she, the said Clerk, signed her 
name in attestation of said instrument in the presence of said Mayor of said municipal 
corporation. 

 
Witness my hand and seal this the         day of                               , 20       . 

 

My Commission Expires: 
  _ 

     Notary Public 
Notary Printed Name 

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF WAYNE 

 

This the  day of   , 20  , personally came before me, 
  , a Notary Public in and for the aforesaid State and 
County,   , who being by me duly sworn, says that 
he/she is the President of, FLOWERS TIMBER & LAND, INC., a North Carolina 
corporation, and that by authority duly given and as an act of the corporation, the foregoing 
instrument was signed in its name by him as President. 

 

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal, this the  day of  , 
20__. 

 

  Notary Public 
Notary Printed Name 

My Commission Expires:   



MITCHELL 
RD

BURGE 
RD

CASEY

MILL

RD

WEBBER LN

CGS

CIR

SOUTHWINDS DR

SERVICE
RD

LES LN

SOUTH RIDGE

DR

ARRINGTON

BRIDGE

RD

PECAN 
RD

.

3507149748

2597967216

3507403670

Proposed land to be leased by
Flowers Timber & Land Inc.



1 

MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL HELD 
NOVEMBER 18, 2019 

WORK SESSION 

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a 
Work Session in the Large Conference Room, City Hall Addition, 200 North Center 
Street, at 5:00 p.m. on November 18, 2019 with attendance as follows: 

Present: Mayor Pro Tem Bill Broadaway, Presiding 
Councilmember Antonio Williams  
Councilmember Bevan Foster 
Councilmember David Ham 
Councilmember Gene Aycock 
Ron Lawrence, Attorney 
Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Melissa Capps, City Clerk 
LaToya Henry, Public Information Officer  
Randy Guthrie, Assistant City Manager 
Jennifer Collins, Planning Director 
Scott Williams, IT Director  
Felicia Brown, Interim P&R Director  
Mike Wagner, Public Utilities Director  
Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director  
Joe Dixon, Fire Chief  
Erin Fonseca, Marketing & Events Manager  
Shycole Simpson-Carter, Community Development Director 
Bernadette Dove, HR Director 
Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director 
Marty Anderson, City Engineer 
Allen Anderson, Chief Building Inspector  
Adam Twiss, Paramount Theatre & GEC Director  
Eddie Fitzgerald, News Argus Reporter 
Lonnie Casey, Citizen 
Bobby Mathis, Citizen 
Della Mathis, Citizen 
Carl Martin, Citizen 
Sylvia Barnes, Citizen 
Yvonnia Moore, Citizen  
Alicia Pierce, Citizen (arrived at 5:03 p.m.) 

Absent: Mayor Chuck Allen 

Call to Order.  The meeting was called to order by Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway 
at 5:00 p.m. 

Adoption of the Agenda.  Councilmember Aycock made a motion to adopt the 
agenda.  Councilmember Ham seconded the motion.  Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway, 
Councilmembers Foster, Ham and Aycock voted in favor of the motion.  Councilmember 
Williams did not vote, therefore, his vote is counted as an affirmative vote.  Mayor Pro 
Tem Broadaway stated the motion passed.   

Consent Agenda Review.  Each item on the consent agenda was reviewed.  
Additional discussion included the following: 

Item J. Waiver of City Employee Personnel Policy.  Councilmember Foster 
stated I just want to make note this is yet another issue that we are having that has been 
done wrong by employees here that have left and gone on.  This is another reason we 
should have a forensic audit.  We have these policies for a reason, for our employees to 
follow, for us to follow, and it hasn’t been done.  I received an email this morning asking 
why haven’t employees been held liable.  It is a valid question.  We don’t know what 

Item A 



2 
 
 

money might be missing, I know the forensic audit was put off, I just want to put on 
record this is why we need it.   
 
Councilmember Ham asked if this would require dissemination of this information.  Ms. 
Bernadette Dove stated this is not a change in policy but we are revising the Personnel 
Policy and there will be some changes to the policy.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway stated I’ve retired twice, its important when people are 
preparing to retire they know exactly what the policy is.  If we can get that word to them, 
I think that would be beneficial.  Ms. Dove stated we will get that done immediately. 
 

Item K. Change Order for HV Brown Park Restroom Shelter Project.  Ms. 
Felicia Brown shared the amount of the change order is slightly less than that in the 
agenda item, that was an estimate.  The actual change order amount is $26,983.50.  The 
agenda item should read not to exceed $28,961. 

 
Closed Session Held.  Upon motion of Councilmember Williams, seconded by 

Councilmember Ham and unanimously carried, Council convened into Closed Session to 
discuss a potential litigation matter.   
 
Council came out of Closed Session. 

 
There being no further business, the meeting recessed until the 7:00 p.m. meeting. 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 The Mayor and Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in regular 
session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on 
November 18, 2019 with attendance as follows: 
 
 
 Present:  Mayor Pro Tem Bill Broadaway, Presiding  

Councilmember Antonio Williams 
Councilmember Bevan Foster 
Councilmember David Ham 
Councilmember Gene Aycock  

 
 Absent: Mayor Chuck Allen 
  
 The meeting was called to order by Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Archbishop Anthony Slater with Tehillah Church Ministries provided the 

invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed.  
 
Approval of Minutes.  Councilmember Aycock made a motion to approve the 

Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of October 7, 2019 as submitted.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilmember Ham.  Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway, 
Councilmembers Ham and Aycock voted in favor of the motion.  Councilmembers 
Williams and Foster did not vote, therefore their votes are counted as an affirmative vote.  
The motion passed. 
 
 Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Leslie Artis as 
an Employee of the City of Goldsboro for More Than 39 Years.  Resolution 
Adopted.  Leslie Artis retires on December 1, 2019 as a Street Maintenance Equipment 
Operator with the Public Works Department of the City of Goldsboro with more than 39 
years of service.  Leslie began his career on December 20, 1978 as a Laborer I with the 
Public Works Department.  On May 1, 1985, Leslie was promoted to Laborer II with the 
Public Works Department.  On August 21, 1985 Leslie was promoted to Equipment 
Operator I with the Public Works Department.  On May 4, 1987, Leslie was promoted to 
Maintenance Worker I with the Public Works Department.  On July 1, 2003, Leslie was 
promoted to Street Maintenance Equipment Operator with the Public Works Department 
where he has served until his retirement.  Leslie has proven himself to be a dedicated and 



3 
 
 

efficient public servant who has gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers 
and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro.  The Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, City employees and the citizens of the 
City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Leslie Artis their deep appreciation and gratitude for 
the service rendered by him to the City over the years.  We express to Leslie our very 
best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity and good health in his future endeavors. 
 
Upon motion of Councilmember Aycock, seconded by Councilmember Williams and 
unanimously carried, Council adopted the following entitled Resolution expressing 
appreciation to Leslie Artis. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-101 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR 
SERVICES RENDERED BY LESLIE ARTIS AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 39 YEARS” 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway and Mr. Rick Fletcher provided comments and presented Mr. 
Artis with a framed copy of the Resolution. 
 
 Goldsboro Jets – Bobby Harvey.  Mr. Bobby Harvey shared information with 
Council regarding the Goldsboro Jets, a newly formed semi-pro football team in 
Goldsboro.  We are here to ask for the City’s support and be designated at the official 
semi-pro football team of Goldsboro.  Mr. Harvey stated they joined the Turkish League, 
it’s a 40 team league that expands about 7 states.  He thanked Mr. Taj Polack for 
advocating for them.  He also thanked Principal Nelson and the Athletic Director at 
Goldsboro High School, where they will be playing their homes games.  Mr. Harvey 
stated what they are asking for from the city is any non-monetary support such as practice 
facilities, etc.  He introduced Mr. Jeremy Padgett, fullback; Mr. William Hinton, 
Assistant Coach; and Mr. Freddy Jones. 
 

Z-20-19 David and Ashley Allen - Southeast corner of Mull Smith Lane and 
Double D Lane.  Public Hearing Held.  The applicant requests the rezoning of a portion 
of the property from R-20A RM-NC (Residential Manufactured Non-Conforming) to 
RM-9 (Residential) which would allow for the placement of one manufactured (mobile) 
home on an individual lot. 
 
Frontage: 328.34 ft. (Mull Smith Ln.) 
               
Area:    Approx. 43,560 sq. ft. or +1.0 acres 
  
Surrounding Zoning: North: R-20A Residential 
   South: R-20A Residential 
   East: R-20A; R-20A RM-NC Residential 
   West: R-20A Residential    
 
The property is currently a portion of a larger tract consisting of 127,147 sq. ft. or 2.91 
acres and occupied by one manufactured home.  The property is zoned R-20A RM-NC 
(Residential Manufactured Non-Conforming) 
 
Adjacent and surrounding properties primarily consist of singlewide manufactured homes 
located on private lots.  East of the subject property is an existing six (6) unit non-
conforming manufactured home park and three private lots rezoned to RM-9 Residential 
in 2001 and 2017.   
 
If the rezoning is approved, the applicant intends to locate a doublewide manufactured 
home upon the property meeting the requirements of the RM-9 zoning district. 
 
The RM-9 zoning district will require the manufactured home to comply with City and 
State regulations. Manufactured homes are required to have the appearance of a site-built, 
single family dwelling unit permanently located on its lot with a pitched roof, masonry 
underpinning, parallel to the front property line and in good condition with no signs of 
rust. 
 



4 
 
 

The property will be required to be subdivided in accordance with the City’s subdivision 
regulations. 
 
The City’s adopted Land Use Plan designates this property for low-density residential 
development.   
 
City water and sewer are not available to serve the subject property.  The property is not 
located in a Special Flood Hazard Area. 
 
Undedicated private dirt paths through existing easements serve properties in the area. As 
a result, the subject lot does not have frontage on an improved public street.  The 
applicant has requested a modification of the requirement that all lots front on an 
improved street in order to allow placement of the mobile home. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway opened the public hearing.  No one spoke and the public 
hearing was closed.   
 
No action is necessary.  The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the 
City Council’s meeting on December 2, 2019. 
 

Z-21-19 St. James Church of Christ – South side of W. Chestnut, west side of 
Kennon Avenue and east side of S. Alabama Avenue.  Public Hearing Held.  The 
applicant requests the rezoning of five (5) individual lots from R-6 (Residential) to O&I-
1 (Office and Institutional-1) for the purposes of renovating and expanding an existing 
church, which is adjacent to the subject properties. 

 
Currently, the applicant owns the five (5) individual lots, which are located in the R-6 
Residential zoning district.  Churches are not a permitted use in the R-6 Residential 
zoning district. 

  
Existing Acreage and Use: 

 
Lot #1:  3,393 sq. ft. or .07 acres (Existing single-family dwelling) 
Lot #2:  6,484 sq. ft. or .14 acres (Vacant) 
Lot #3:  5,935 sq. ft. or .13 acres (Vacant) 
Lot #4:  4,355 sq. ft. or .09 acres (Existing single-family dwelling) 
Lot #5:  4,135 sq. ft. or .09 acres (Vacant) 

 
Surrounding Zoning:  North: R-6 Residential 

  South: O&I-1 Office & Institutional 
  East:  R-6 Residential 
  West: R-6 Residential 
 

As previously stated, if the zoning change is approved to Office & Institutional-1, the 
applicant intends to combine all lots, renovate and expand the existing church.   

 
Site, landscape, grading and drainage plans will be required in accordance with the City’s 
Unified Development Code and City Council approval will be necessary. 

 
The City’s updated Land Use Plan designates the property as High-Density Residential. 

 
City water and sanitary sewer are available to serve all subject areas. 

 
The property is located in a Special Flood Hazard Area known as the 100-Year 
Floodplain.  Any commercial development will be subject to meeting compliance with 
the City’s Floodplain regulations. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway opened the public hearing.  No one spoke and the public 
hearing was closed.  

 
No action is necessary.  The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the 
City Council’s meeting on December 2, 2019.   



5 
 
 

Z-22-19 Goldsboro Housing Authority – South side of E. Walnut Street 
between S. Kornegay Street and S. Slocumb Street.  Public Hearing Held.  
Withdrawn.  The applicant requests the rezoning of the property from R-9 Residential to 
R-6 Conditional District to limit the use of the property to a parking lot associated with 
an existing senior living apartment complex. 
  
Frontage:    83 ft. (E. Walnut St.) 
 
Acreage:  13,189 sq. ft. or 0.30 acres 
 
Surrounding Zoning:  North:  R-9 Residential; 
   South:  R-6CD Residential; 
   East:     R-6CD Residential; 
   West:   R-9 Residential    
 
The property is currently heavily vegetated and undeveloped.  It is located adjacent to a 
multi-family apartment complex formally known as Walnut Street School Apartments.   
 
Goldsboro Housing Authority owns the apartment complex, which consists of one, two-
story building containing 19 apartments and one, three-story building containing 36 
apartments.  All 55 apartment units are vacant and in the process of being renovated for 
future occupancy.   
 
The City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan recommends mixed-use downtown 
development for the property. 
 
As previously stated, the applicant proposes to rezone the property from R-9 Residential 
to R-6 Conditional District.  If approved, the applicant intends to develop the property 
into a parking lot for the purposes of providing additional parking spaces for residents of 
the facility. 
 
Site plan approval is required at the time of rezoning to a Conditional District.  However, 
the applicant is requesting a waiver of the site plan until development plans are 
completed.   
 
The City Council may waive the site plan requirement at the time of rezoning provided a 
site plan is approved by City council prior to the issuance of any development permits.  
 
On November 6, 2019, the Planning Department received a request from the applicant to 
withdraw the subject-rezoning request without prejudice.  The applicant indicated their 
desire to clean up the property and use as green space.     
 
Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway opened the public hearing and the following person spoke. 
 

Clark Boydston provided a handout.  A copy of the handout is on file in the 
Clerk’s Office.  He congratulated the applicant on their choice to withdraw the 
application. 
 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 
 
Upon motion of Councilmember Ham, seconded by Councilmember Williams and 
unanimously carried, Council accepted the request of the applicant to withdraw the 
rezoning request without prejudice. 
 
 CU-12-19 Henry Battle - East side of S. James Street between Spruce Street 
and Pine Street.  Public Hearing Held.  Applicant requests a Conditional Use Permit to 
allow the operation of a place of entertainment with ABC permits.  As part of the request, 
separate site plan approval is required. 
 
 Frontage: 111.94 ft.   
 Depth:  205.88 ft. 
 Area:  22,951 sq. ft. or 0.526 acres 



6 
 
 

 Zoning:  Central Business District 
 
The site is the location of the former Elk’s Lodge and the physical address of the property 
is 312 S. James Street.   
 
In 2007 and 2008, City Council denied Conditional Use Permits to operate a place of 
entertainment with ABC permits and without ABC permits, respectively, at the subject 
property.   
 
In 2010, City Council approved site and landscape plans to allow an indoor flea market to 
operate upon the property.  Site plan approval is valid for one year from the date of City 
Council approval.  Since the applicant never commenced development of the property, 
the site plan expired and since then the property has remained vacant. 
  
On July 15, 2019, Goldsboro City Council amended the City’s Unified Development 
Code as it pertained to bars, nightclubs, pool halls, microbreweries, places of 
entertainment (both public, private and non-profit) with ABC Permits. 
 
The following regulations were approved as they pertain to places of entertainment: 
 

1. Within that area of the CBD bounded by the south side of Ash Street, the east side 
of George Street, the north side of Elm Street and the west side of William Street, 
there shall be no minimum separation distance from residentially zoned or 
developed property.  A 50 ft. minimum separation distance shall be required for 
stand-alone churches or schools. 

2. For the remainder of the CBD, not described by the boundaries above, the 
minimum separation distance from residentially zoned or developed property, 
stand-alone churches or schools shall be one hundred feet. 

3. In the CBD, there shall be no minimum separation distance between two such 
establishments. 

4. Within that area of the CBD bounded by the south side of Ash Street, the east side 
of George Street, the north side of Elm Street and the west side of William Street 
there shall be no minimum off-street parking requirements. 

 
The property is zoned CBD (Central Business District).  A place of entertainment with 
ABC permits is permitted in the CBD only after the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit 
approved by City Council.  In addition, separate site plan approval is required.  
 
As previously stated, the site was the location of the former Elk’s Lodge.  It contains an 
existing single-story, brick-veneer and concrete block building of approximately 3,408 
sq. ft. on one private lot. The building was built prior to the adoption of the City’s 
Unified Development Codes.  As such, building setback modifications will be necessary. 
The applicant’s floor plan indicates a main ballroom assembly area consisting of 
approximately 1,236 sq. ft., a seating area consisting of 13 tables and 78 chairs, a kitchen, 
storage rooms, offices and restrooms. 
 
According to the applicant, the facility would be available to rent for special occasions 
such as birthday parties, ballroom dancing, wedding receptions, family reunions and live 
entertainment.  
 
Days/Hours of Operation: Reservations only (Monday-Sunday) 
                                                      Not activities after 12Midnight 
No. of Employees:    2-4  
Refuse Collection:   Dumpster 
 
As previously stated, a 50 ft. minimum separation distance shall be required for stand-
alone churches or schools.  Currently, the existing building is approximately 200 ft. from 
a stand-alone church. 
 
Since the property is bounded by the south side of Ash Street, the east side of George 
Street, the north side of Elm Street and the west side of William Street, no off-street 
parking is required. 



7 
 
 

The applicant is requesting a modification of the City’s street tree requirement due to 
limited space and overhead utilities at the front of the existing building. 
 
The applicant is asking for a modification of the required Class C (20 ft. wide) landscape 
buffer for approximately 100 ft. along the northern property line since the subject 
property is adjacent to residentially developed property.  The existing building is located 
less than 5 ft. from the northern property line. 
 
In addition, the applicant is requesting a modification of the required Type A (5 ft. wide) 
landscape buffer along the southern property line for approximately 100 ft. since the 
existing building is located less than 5 ft. from the southern property line. 
 
The subject property is not located in Goldsboro’s Historic District. 
 
The property is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area. 
 
The applicant is requesting the following modifications. 
 

1. Modification of the building’s side yard setbacks from 15 ft. to 0 ft. along the 
northern and southern property line. 

2. Modification of City street tree requirement. 
3. Modification of Type C (20 ft. wide) landscape buffer along the northern property 

line. 
4. Modification of the Type A (5 ft. wide) landscape buffer along the southern 

property line. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway opened the public hearing and the following people spoke 
after being properly sworn in: 
 

1. Pastor Will Best stated I am the pastor of the church that is less than 50 feet from 
the property and our only concern is that we have a daycare there also at that 
location.  We are going to turn our daycare into a second shift which will not be 
closing till 11:00 at night.  I know they are saying they are closing at 12 but 11:00 
at night and some of our services get out at 10:30 at night also.  Our other concern 
we have, after a Saturday night party, we have to clean up the land right there on 
S. James and Pine Street on the corner, so all of the parking, the overflow will 
park on our land, we will probably have to be the ones to clean up.  The bottles 
and cans and all that stuff so I am just asking the City Council that they will 
consider the church property and daycare also.  

2. Bob Kenny stated my wife and I live in the neighborhood there.  We are opposed 
and hope you are opposed to the modifications and zonings on this area.  It is 
pretty much a residential area.  We do not want to see loud music, loud parties, if 
you are talking about 78 chairs and 13 tables plus the dance floor, that is quite a 
few people and a lot of automobiles to park on city streets.  So we are talking 
about a traffic jam, as well as the people who go outside and drink, continue their 
partying.  So we ask you to vote against it please.  

3. Vincent Jones stated I have been in Goldsboro for 31 years, I am ex-military.  I 
moved here back in 1988.  I remember when James Street was a different time, 
different era, if you lived here we know the history of it.  I don’t need to go down 
that road.  I am here on the behalf of Mr. Battle.  I have known him quite some 
time and I have seen how he has reconstructed this building and do the things that 
this board has been asking.  But I’ve also noticed around him, there are other 
people occupying or reconstructing buildings and basically do the same things he 
is trying to do.  I think he deserves the same thing.  As a black owner, there are 
not many black owners of anything around here, and I don’t think anyone should 
be biased.  Think about now, the future, what’s been going on, how the street on 
James Street on that particular end has changed.  When someone wants to have an 
event or something myself, I am 54 years old, I’m not into this disco like the 
young people, I don’t have anything against the young people, but he provides a 
place, someone my age can come out and actually have something nice.  I don’t 
know about someone saying they seen a bunch of people hanging out, I do not 
know nothing about all this, I don’t hang out late at night.  My thing is, I think he 



8 

deserves an opportunity.  Everyone deserves an opportunity.  Take into 
consideration, actually watch James Street, any time something is wrong, the city 
can stop the use.  So take that into consideration, give Mr. Battle an opportunity. 
Give him an opportunity to prove to you and the citizens of Goldsboro that he can 
actually have something nice and run it the way the board is going to allow him.  
Please give him an opportunity.  Thank you.  

4. Deborah Battle stated Henry Battle is my brother.  I have always supported him.
He has always liked entertainment.  It ain’t too many places here in Goldsboro
where he hadn’t entertained, on the Base, the Country Club which is now the
Event Center, Lane Tree, Dillard Alumni Building.  All I am asking is give him
an opportunity, he deserves it.  Thank you.

5. Shelia Lee stated I am here on behalf of Mr. Battle, I’ve known him for quite a
few years. He is a very generous person.  He gives back to the community.  I
think it is only fair to give him an opportunity to run his business as he chooses to.
I see no problem with it.  The bottles or whatever they are talking about, I’ve been
there on occasions and there is none of that.  He makes sure everything is taken
care of.  He is proud of where he comes from.  Proud of what he has and I think it
is only fair to let him run his business as he chooses.  Thank you.

6. Dianne McKiver stated I am Henry’s oldest sister and I am just asking that you
allow and give my brother the chance.  I see y’all denied him twice, but I said I
am going to ask them that you allow him a chance this time.  I think someone was
saying the church by on Pine Street, is that close to the carousel? Councilmember
Williams stated yes.  Ms. McKiver stated my thing is, you sit here a couple of
months ago, and you approved something for the carousel, which is nowhere from
my brother’s place.  It’s all right there, right down the street, at the corner of
James and Chestnut.  You approved something and that’s not far from my brother.
I said he don’t believe in a lot of mess or trouble, he is a quiet person, he is
humble, and you will not have to worry about any kind of violence or trouble
because he does not believe in that.  He believes in what’s right.  They trying to
say trash, bottles, or whatever outside, he is going to make sure, if that is the case,
it’s going to be cleaned up.  It is not going to be a whole lot of trash out there.  I
am just asking that you give him a chance because he deserves a chance.  He has
been there thirteen years, y’all denied him twice.  But I said you know what, God
has it in control and you cannot do wrong and get by.  I am just asking in the
name of Jesus to give my brother a chance because he deserves a chance.  He has
had that building for thirteen years and it is like you have held him hostage.  I am
asking that you give him a chance.  Let him prove to you, to the city, that he can
do it.  I know he can do it cause he is a humble person.  If someone asks him to do
something he will do it.  He has been there thirteen years, it is time to give him a
chance.  Thank you.

7. Alicia Pierce stated I was not going to come up here, but after hearing, I…there is
an Elk’s Lodge on Chestnut Street because I just went there recently for a class
reunion and there is a church right beside it and I do realize that the idea is that
the church may not have come forth and said they had an issue, but I know we
had a great event there that night. They had a bar and like at most bars, you don’t
take the drinks outside the building, so I am not sure where you were saying
bottles and things. Every drink people were being served inside that bar, were in
cups or things and they were disposed of inside. If you want to hold him to all
drinking must take place inside the facility at the bar, okay. But I do think that he
would not be the first facility in the Goldsboro district that is close to a church and
I realize you have a church here saying, and I am a churchgoing woman, so I’m
not trying to disrespect the gentleman’s church, but the gentleman said my church
is planning to start having extended hours and my thing is are you planning to
have extended hours now that you know this is happening or did you really have
that in your plans. Did your planning go through this planning, as he is trying to
do? So I think right now the decision should be based on what the church
currently does and then the restrictions should just be maybe you can’t bring
bottles outside the actual facility. But I don’t think the decision not to have the
facility should be based on bottles. I think the man should be provided the
opportunity I’m sorry the other gentleman has a residency nearby but it’s not that
far, all of that is not far from the bars downtown on Center Street.  That’s all I’ve
got to say.



9 

8. Henry Battle stated hi there.  Like people have already spoke, I have been there 
thirteen years.  It has not been an easy job.  It’s not been an easy job, but I am 
going to say this, I lay my shield and my sword down, I accept the kiss of Judas, 
because without opposition there would be no salvation. I’m here to present this 
building to this council in the Goldsboro community. 312 S. James St. which is 
actually improved benevolence and protecting of the Elks of the world, the Black 
Elks Lodge erected 1949. Now 1949, the US military, the United States military 
was segregated in 1949. I don’t know if everyone knew that, it was segregated in 
1949, I am not here to ask for 40 acres and a mule, something I should already 
have. I’m here to ask to allow me to provide this place to the city of Goldsboro a 
place where they can come and have meet and greets, birthday parties, family
reunions, wedding receptions, line dancing, etc. I’m not asking for no one to just 
give this, I want to earn it. You won’t give me the opportunity to earn it, give me 
the opportunity to fail at trying to earn it. I say this to the Council is this the land of 
the free, home of the brave, if so prove it. Is this the land of life, liberty, and The 
Pursuit of Happiness, prove it.  I don’t know if anyone is familiar with the senior
games but there is a section of the senior games where they have what they call
the senior follies and it is right here at the Paramount Theater and you can ask
anyone that has ever been at the Paramount Theater if they have been there
between 2013 and to date.  I’ve been a part of the senior games since 2013, since I
turned 50.  Anybody that has been to that, they know exactly who I am, they
know exactly what I bring to the table, it is undeniable.  Line dancing is what I do.
So I am saying to each and every one of you, think about what I am saying to you,
if anyone deserves a chance I do. If I do something wrong that don’t suit, you put
before me, you know how to call me back. Call me back in front of you and I can
speak on it. But I feel like I deserve it and if anyone deserves it I do. Now the
biggest thing I really dislike about this, the 13 years that I have been there, let me
tell you something, from the time I purchased that building in 2006, it has been
nothing but problems, because the city of Goldsboro had a lien on the property. It
has been nothing but issues, all the time. If I could sit here and tell you the
atrocities I have been through in the last 13 years it will take until tomorrow but
the one thing I will say I lost my mother in May of last year at 89 ½. The biggest
thing that bothers me is the fact she did not get a chance to see what I have always
told her what I could do and will do with that building. That’s what I hate about
all of this. All I can say is just think about it, because if I can’t bring it to pass, I
surrender. Thank you.

Councilmember Williams stated gentlemen, my concern is come December 2nd 
we will have a new council coming in here and they may not have had the 
opportunity to be in this meeting and see the people come forth, show there 
concerns so I would like to make a motion that we approve Item CU-12-19.  
Councilmember Foster seconded the motion.   

Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway stated we still have to have the recommendation of 
the Planning Commission.   

Councilmember Aycock stated I believe the clerk can verify this, the old members 
will be returning to vote on anything that goes through public hearing tonight.  
The current council votes on it.  Is that right. 

Ms. Melissa Capps stated yes, we will handle old business and then hold the 
Organizational Meeting.   

Councilmember Williams withdrew his motion.  Councilmember Foster withdrew 
his second.   

No action is necessary.  The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the 
City Council’s meeting on December 2, 2019. 

Planning Commission Excused.  

Councilmember Williams stepped out of the room at 7:48 p.m. 



10 
 
 

 Public Hearing – 2018-2019 CAPER.  Public Hearing Held.  To allow citizens 
the opportunity to comment on the City of Goldsboro's 2018-2019 Consolidated Annual 
Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER), for Entitlement Grantees receiving 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and Home Investment Partnership 
(HOME) funds. 
 
On July 1, 2018, the City of Goldsboro received $339,336 in CDBG funds and $228,922 
in HOME funds from the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for 
fiscal year 2018-2019 to administer its CDBG and HOME program and activities.  The 
primary objective of the Community Development Program is the development of viable 
urban communities and expanding economic opportunities, principally for persons of low 
and moderate-income 
 
The CAPER provides an opportunity for the City to assess its annual performance and to 
discuss what actions or changes it should take as a result of its performance.  In addition, 
it is designed to provide information on how the City actually used its entitlement funds 
during the most recently completed program year, July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 
 
A fifteen (15) day comment period began on November 11, 2019 and will end on 
November 25, 2019.  A public hearing must be held during this public comment period.  
Comments received at this public hearing and during the fifteen (15) day period will be 
incorporated as part of the 2018-2019 CAPER.  An advertisements were published in the 
Goldsboro News Argus on October 31, 2019, relative to the holding of a public hearing 
and fifteen (15) day review.   
  
A draft of the 2018-2019 CAPER has been prepared, made available, and placed at public 
access sites such as the City of Goldsboro Planning Department, the Office of the City 
Clerk in the New City Hall Annex, 200 North Center Street, in the Community Relations 
Department, City Hall, 200 North Center Street; at the Wayne County Public Library, 
1001 East Ash Street; at the Goldsboro Housing Authority, 1729 Edgerton Street, 
Goldsboro; and on the City’s website at www.goldsboronc.gov.  
 

Councilmember Williams returned to the room at 7:50 p.m.  
  
Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway opened the public hearing and the following people spoke: 
 

1. Alicia Pierce shared concerns regarding issues with accountability and 
responsibility and more transparency with the CAPER.  Ms. Pierce also expressed 
concerns regarding community development monies available to those 
communities affected by recent storms and promoting more citizen participation.   

2. Carl Martin shared concerns regarding the timing of the report, for the past three 
years, information was made available in September.  He also shared concerns 
regarding the format of the report and lack of recommendations from the advisory 
committee.  Mr. Martin stated he would like to see the agreement where monies 
could be used to pay debt back on WA Foster Recreation Center.   

3. David Craig shared concerns with lack of detail in CAPER Report and Action 
Plan regarding how the priorities were established.  He questioned the validly and 
reliability of the reports due to lack of documentation.  

 
Upon motion of Councilmember Williams, seconded by Councilmember Aycock and 
unanimously carried, Council: 
 

1. Directed the staff to incorporate any comments at the public hearing into the 
City's CAPER; and 

 
2. Authorized the staff to submit any needs identified or comments received to 

the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) after the required 
comment period has ended. 

 
 Public Comment Period.  Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway opened up the public 
comment period and the following people spoke. 
 



11 
 
 

1. Carl Martin stated the Mayor was listed on the agenda to make comments at the 
NAACP Banquet.  He did not show and neither did anyone else from the city.   

2. Sylvia Barnes, NAACP President, stated we did not have anyone from the city 
attend the banquet.  Ms. Barnes stated she went upstairs many times, but did not 
receive a response regarding the letter or ad for the banquet.   

3. David Craig stated I live on Shelly Drive, a part of it was supposed to be paved 
between J. Ryan Road and Samuel Road, and it has not been done.  
Councilmember Aycock shared due to the weather, it had not been paved but it is 
on the list and after winter it should be paved.  

4. Allen Young shared concerns regarding actions during the recent elections. 
 
No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed. 
 
 Consent Agenda - Approved as Recommended.  Mr. Timothy Salmon, City 
Manager presented the Consent Agenda.  All items were considered to be routine and 
could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda 
and discussed and considered separately.  In that event, the remaining item(s) on the 
Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote.  Councilmember 
Ham moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items I, J, K, L, M, and N be approved as 
recommended by the City Manager and staff.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Aycock and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in the 
affirmative.  Mayor Allen declared the Consent Agenda approved as recommended by 
staff.  The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows: 
 
 Non-contiguous Annexation Request – Contiguous Annexation Petition – 
Luis Jimenez (East side of S. NC 111 Hwy between Mollie Drive and Sheridan 
Forest Road) 1.98 Acres.  Public Hearing Set.  The City Council, at their meeting on 
November 4, 2019, requested that the City Clerk examine the subject annexation petition 
for sufficiency.  The City Clerk has completed the examination and has determined that 
the petition is sufficient.  Sufficiency indicates that property is described accurately 
within 1:10,000 feet and that all property owners have signed the petition. 
 
Pursuant to G. S. 160A-58.2, Council shall fix a date for public hearing on the annexation 
if the petition is considered sufficient by the City Clerk. 
 
The Notice of Public Hearing would schedule December 16, 2019 as the date for the 
public hearing.  A report prepared by the Planning Department, in conjunction with other 
City departments, will be submitted to the Council on that date.  
 
Staff recommended Council schedule a public hearing for the proposed annexation of 
Luis Jimenez property for December 16, 2019. Consent Agenda Approval.  Ham/Aycock 
(5 Ayes) 
 

Waiver of City Employee Personnel Policy Section VII – Section 8.  
Approved.  The City Employee Personnel Policy was last revised on September 9, 2019 
to update Appendix C - Anti-Harassment Policy.  
 
Upon review by management and the City Attorney, it has been concluded that during the 
month of December of each year, Article VII – Section 8 of the current Employee 
Personnel Policy has been incorrectly applied towards previous vacation payouts.  
 
Effective the last payroll of each calendar year, any employee with more than 30 days of 
accumulated vacation leave, shall only have 30 days of vacation leaved carried forward. 
All vacation leave in excess of 30 days will convert to sick leave. Upon termination of 
employment, sick leave may roll over to the NC Local Government Retirement System 
and shall be applied towards retirement service credit. 
 
Previous practice has been that during the month of December, all terminating employees 
received 100% of accumulated vacation payout, which is in noncompliance of policy 
previously approved by City Council.  
 



12 
 
 

As the Employee Personnel Policy is currently under revision, staff recommendation is to 
update the Vacation Payout policy to mirror that of NC State Government and other 
major local government entities.    
 
It is recommended the City Council, by motion, approve a one-time wavier of Section 
VII – Section 8 of the Employee Personnel Policy for those employees terminating in 
December 2019. Effective January 1, 2020, the current adopted policy will resume as the 
official practice of maximum accumulation of vacation payout.  Consent Agenda 
Approval.  Ham/Aycock (5 Ayes) 
 

Change Order for HV Brown Park Restroom Shelter Project.  Resolution 
Adopted.  The bid for the HV Brown Park Restroom Shelter Project was awarded to 
Vortex Construction Co., LLC for $209,136.  The project has been delayed due to flood 
map changes.  
 
The construction drawings have been revised and updated to reflect the needed changes 
to construct in a flood plain.  As some of these requirements were not in the original bid 
package, a change order has been submitted by Vortex for an amount not to exceed 
$28,961. 
 
Parks and Recreation staff have reviewed the change order.  There is money in the 
current FY19-20 budget to cover the cost of the change order.    
 
By motion, accept the recommendation of staff to adopt the following entitled resolution 
authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to approve the change order for an amount not to 
exceed $28,961 with Vortex Construction Co., LLC to construct the shelter and 
restrooms in HV Brown Park. Consent Agenda Approval.  Ham/Aycock (5 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-102 “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO TO APPROVE CHANGE ORDER WITH VORTEX CONSTRUCTION 
CO., LLC FOR CONSTRUCTION OF SHELTER & RESTROOM AT HV BROWN 
PARK” 
 
 Market Based Compost and Mulch Pricing.  Resolution Adopted.  Annually, 
compost and mulch pricing has been changed and updated through City Council 
approval.  Recent uncontrollable weather and seasonal conditions have created varying 
markets for the use and sale of compost and mulch. 
 
Compost and mulch sales were increasing steadily over the last three years.  However, 
due to weather out of our control and negative feedback from some regular customers on 
the price increased, sales declined.  During October 2019, City Council approved sale 
prices for compost and free mulch, which generated the highest sales month in 2019.   
 
Onsite there is around 4,000 cubic yards of bulk compost and around 7,000 cubic yards 
of mulch on the ground.  Feedback from customers was to keep sales pricing, for some 
discontinued purchases after 2018 price increased.  They reminded staff that they still 
have to pay hauling and delivery fees.  Feedback from staff was to keep sales pricing to 
continue to move product.  Seasonal and market pricing needs to be more fluid.  Price 
ranges of $9.00 to $15.00 for bulk compost greater than twenty cubic years, $15.00 
$21.00 for bulk compost less than twenty cubic yards, and $0.00 to $8.00 for mulch.  The 
minimum revenue target is greater than $50,000 per year. 
 
Staff recommended the City Council adopt a resolution amending market based compost 
and mulch pricing and authorize the city manager to make market based pricing 
adjustments for the sale of compost and mulch at the City’s Compost Facility.  Consent 
Agenda Approval.  Ham/Aycock (5 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-103 “RESOLUTION AMENDING MARKET BASED 
COMPOST AND MULCH PRICING” 
 



13 
 
 

Request Authorization to Purchase a Road Tractor for the Public Works 
Department’s Solid Waste Division.  Resolution Adopted.  Funds were earmarked in 
the amount of $150,000 in the FY20 budget to replace a 2001 Sterling road tractor.   
 
Staff analyzed procurement options with the assistance of Finance, and it has been 
determined that it is in the City’s best interest to purchase through the joint cooperative 
competitive bidding group purchasing program exception authorized by G.S. 143-29 
rather than formal bid.  This exception allows local governments to purchase from State 
Contract or joint cooperative purchasing programs such as, Sourcewell, HGAC, NC 
Sheriff’s Association, etc… This will allow the City to purchase the equipment that staff 
has determined to be the best fit and within the budgeted price allowance as approved by 
Council.   
 
MHC Kenworth in Clinton, NC has priced the 2020 Kenworth KW T880 road tractor in 
the amount of $139,553.70, and they are a Sourcewell compliant vendor.  See equipment 
summary and estimate.    
 
Staff recommended Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the 
purchase of the 2020 Kenworth road tractor from MHC Kenworth in Clinton, NC for 
$139,553.70.  Consent Agenda Approval.  Ham/Aycock (5 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-104 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF 
EQUIPMENT UNDER JOINT COOPERATIVE COMPETITIVE BIDDING GROUP 
PURCHASING PROGRAM” 
 

Departmental Monthly Reports.  Accepted As Information.  The various 
departmental reports for October 2019 were submitted for the Council’s approval.  It was 
recommended that Council accept the reports as information.  Consent Agenda Approval.  
Ham/Aycock (5 Ayes) 
 

End of Consent Agenda.   
  
 City Manager’s Report.  Mr. Salmon highlighted recent events at the Paramount 
Theatre, events held by Parks and Recreation.  He also provided information regarding 
upcoming events including soccer tournaments and Jingle in the Park.   
 

Mayor and Councilmembers’ Reports and Recommendations.  
Councilmember Williams stated it has been an honor to serve with Councilmember 
Foster.  I am really going to miss him, he has brought transparency to this Council.  I am 
proud to call him my friend, my brother.  He stated answer your phone.  Keep him in 
your prayers and keep bothering him.   

 
Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway thanked everyone for their participation tonight and 

thanked everyone for voting.   
 
Councilmember Foster stated thank you Councilmember Williams.  A few weeks 

ago we honored a few firemen for what they did for Jaylen Suggs.  He honored two 
young heroes who tried to help save their friend before help arrived.  He recognized 
Joshua and Jeremiah Foye.   
 
Councilmembers Foster and Williams and Ms. Brandi Matthews presented the young 
men with medals.   
 
Councilmember Foster apologized to Councilmember Williams and future 
Councilmembers Polack and Matthews for not being able to attend the next meeting as he 
will be out of town.  I do want to let you know, anything you need, I am just a phone call 
away.  Continue to fight for this city, hold everyone accountable.   
 
 Councilmember Ham thanked everyone who came out to vote and encouraged 
everyone to come out in future elections.  I would like to thank Councilmember Foster 
for his service to the City.  Councilmember Ham encouraged everyone to reach out to 
those less fortunate especially during the holidays. 



14 
 
 

 Councilmember Aycock thanked Councilmember Foster for his service. 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:42 p.m. 
 
            

___________________________ 
       Bill Broadaway 
       Mayor Pro Tem 
   
 
       ___________________________ 
       Melissa Capps, MMC /NCCMC 
       City Clerk  



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-107 

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION 
FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY GIGI EASON    

AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
FOR MORE THAN 30 YEARS 

WHEREAS, Gigi Eason retires on January 1, 2020 as an Engineer with the Goldsboro Fire 
Department of the City of Goldsboro with more than 30 years of service; and 

WHEREAS, Gigi began her career on May 31, 1989 as a Firefighter with the Goldsboro Fire 
Department; and 

WHEREAS, On August 11, 1999, Gigi was promoted to Fire Engineer with the Goldsboro Fire 
Department where she has served until her retirement; and 

WHEREAS, Gigi has proven herself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the 
admiration and respect of her fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and 

      WHEREAS, The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of 
themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Gigi Eason their deep 
appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by her to the City over the years. 

      NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 

1. We express to Gigi our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity and good health in her
future endeavors.

2. This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall
be in full force and effect from and after this 16th day of December, 2019.

______________________ 
Mayor 

Attested by: 

_______________________ 
City Clerk 

Item B



RESOLUTION 2019-108 

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION TO  
JULIE METZ FOR SERVICE TO THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO  

FOR MORE THAN 24 YEARS 

WHEREAS, Julie Metz began working with the City of Goldsboro as a city planner specializing in 
transportation and community development planning in 1993. For two years, between 1995 and 1997, Julie left the 
City to work with a private consulting company but returned to the City in 1997 to again be a city planner; and 

WHEREAS, In 1999, Julie transitioned into downtown economic development as the City’s Downtown 
Development Director and Downtown Goldsboro Development Corporation (DGDC) as the Executive Director; and 

WHEREAS, Julie led a visionary master plan in 2007, which paved the way for the development we enjoy 
today. Julie was also responsible for securing the City of Goldsboro’s 2013 Transportation Infrastructure Generating 
Economic Recovery (TIGER)V award of $10M by strategically developing the project proposal, gaining support of 
elected officials and partners, and preparing/writing the grant application; and  

WHEREAS, Julie was also responsible for securing a second TIGER Grant in 2016 of $5M for Goldsboro 
which will lead to the completion of the last block of Center Street, the redesign of Cornerstone Commons into the 
Hub, Wayfinding Signage and a concourse at the Transfer Station; and   

WHEREAS, Julie led efforts that resulted in $21.6 million in grant money for City/Downtown, $596,000 in 
community contributions for downtown and approximately $842,000 of in-kind assistance for downtown in the last 
nine years; and  

WHEREAS, These years of service have been marked by exemplary dedication to the best interests of the 
City and downtown community for the betterment of its economic, cultural and aesthetic development; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina 
that the Mayor and City Council express to you, Julie Metz, on behalf of themselves, city employees and the citizens 
of the City of Goldsboro, our appreciation and gratitude for your unselfish, devoted and invaluable service and 
contributions rendered to the City of Goldsboro.   

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full 
force and effect from and after this 16th day of December, 2019.   

____________________________ 
Mayor  

Attested by: 

_________________________ 
City Clerk  

Item C



D









E







F

























CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

DECEMBER 16, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing to Consider an Incentive Grant Agreement 
with Michael Aram, Inc. and Wayne County 

BACKGROUND: Michael Aram, Inc. has developed plans for the installation 
of machinery and equipment and expanding its existing 
facility located in Goldsboro, North Carolina.  The City 
Council of Goldsboro believes that the location of new 
industries and the expansion of existing industries is vital to 
the economic health of Goldsboro and to the welfare of its 
citizens.  The City Council wishes to encourage such 
development by means of offering incentives to recruit new 
industries and to aid in expansion of existing industries.  
Such incentives are predicated on the notion of expanding 
Goldsboro’s tax base and providing additional jobs for 
Goldsboro citizens that pay wages higher than the current 
prevailing average hourly wage in the particular industry. 

The company is expected to create over 116 new jobs at this 
facility on or before December 31, 2023 and pay an 
additional $8,000 per year in property taxes to the City.   

DISCUSSION: Pursuant to NC General Statue 158-7.1, a public hearing is 
being held on a proposal to provide economic incentives to 
Michael Aram, INC. totaling $100,000 over a five-year 
period based on an incentive agreement with a $5,680,000 
capital investment and the creation of at least 116 jobs. 

RECOMMENDATION: Following the public hearing and depending on comments 
received, staff recommends Council consider adopting a 
Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute 
an economic grant agreement with Michael Aram, Inc.  The 
proposed Agreement is attached hereto. 

Date: _______________ _______________________________ 
City Manager 

Item G 



 
RESOLUTION 2019- 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO  

EXECUTE AN ECONOMIC GRANT AGREEMENT WITH MICHAEL ARAM, INC.  
 

WHEREAS,  the Goldsboro City Council verily believes that it is in the best interests of 
the citizens of Wayne County to encourage and support economic development within 
Wayne County through the recruitment of new industries to the City and County and the 
expansion of existing industries in the City and County; and 

 
WHEREAS, (Michael Aram, Inc.), has developed plans for the installation of machinery 

and equipment and expanding its existing facility in Goldsboro; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to encourage such development by means of 
offering incentives to aid in such efforts; 

 
WHEARAS, the City Council have conducted a public hearing on this matter, as required 

by NC GS 158-7.1; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The Goldsboro City Council hereby approves the Incentive Grant Agreement (attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference) between the City of Goldsboro, and (Michael 
Aram, Inc.). 

 
The City Mayor and the Clerk to the Board are hereby authorized to sign all necessary 
documents on behalf of the City of Goldsboro in order to effectuate this transaction.  
 
This resolution shall become effective upon adoption.   

 
This 16th day of December, 2019.   

 
 

      _______________________________ 
         Chuck Allen 

       Mayor, Goldsboro 
   

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Melissa Capps, City Clerk  

 



            
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF WAYNE 
 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 

This AGREEMENT is executed this _________day of _________ 2019, by and between Company, 
Michael Aram, Inc., headquartered at 236 West 26th Street 4th floor New York, New York 10011, a corporation 
authorized to do business in the state of North Carolina, having a principal place of business at 1500 North 
Carolina Street Goldsboro, NC, 27530 (hereinafter “Michael Aram, Inc.”), and Wayne County a political 
subdivision of the State of North Carolina, having its principal place of business at 224 E. Walnut Street, 
Goldsboro NC 27530 (hereinafter the “County”) and the City of Goldsboro a political subdivision of the State 
of North Carolina, having a principal place of business at 200 North Center Street Goldsboro NC 27530 
(hereinafter the “City”).  
 
 WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, Michael Aram, Inc. desires to install certain machinery and equipment and expand its 
existing facility located in Goldsboro, Wayne County, representing a total non-depreciated investment of at 
least $5,680,000 in personal and real property, and to create at least one hundred sixteen (116) new jobs at this 
facility on or before December 31, 2023, with incremental achievement goals starting December 31, 2019; and 

 
WHEREAS, Michael Aram, Inc. shall incur certain costs for installation of these improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the addition of these improvements will expand the County and City tax base through 

increased ad valorem tax value created as a consequence of capital investment in real property and machinery 
and equipment being brought into the County and City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County and City recognize that increased ad valorem tax revenues will be generated as 
a consequence of this business venture and investment, and that a grant by the County and the City would be an 
incentive for such investment by Michael Aram, Inc. to assist the same pay a portion of the costs of the 
investment, and that such incentives be designated as an “Economic Development Grant” to Michael Aram, Inc. 
in the amount of Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000); and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties hereto wish to reduce their understanding regarding the details of the Economic 

Development Grant and Michael Aram, Inc. performance to this agreement; 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, for the mutual considerations noted hereinafter, the sufficiency of which are 

hereby acknowledged, the parties do hereby contract and agree as follows: 
 

I. Economic Development Incentives. 
 

Michael Aram, Inc. will incur costs in adding machinery and equipment as well as additional real 
property at their current facility and the County and City will realize economic benefits due to the 
expansion of the ad valorem tax base.  As an incentive for Michael Aram, Inc. to invest in machinery 
and equipment and real property at its existing site in accordance with NCGS 158-7.1, the County 
and City shall provide to Michael Aram, Inc. the incentives set forth herein in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement.  The County and City shall provide an Economic 
Development Grant to Michael Aram, Inc. with an estimated value of $200,000, with such a grant to 
be made available to Michael Aram, Inc. as set forth in Exhibit A. 

 



            
 

 - 2 -  

       A. The County and City shall pay to Michael Aram, Inc. in installments a total grant of $200,000 as 
shown on, and in accordance with terms and conditions described in, Exhibit A to this 
Agreement (the “County and City Performance Grant”);  

 
II. Representations.   

 
The County and City represent and warrant that (a) they have the power and authority to bind 
themselves to the requirements of this Agreement and (b) this Agreement is executed under the 
authority granted to the County and City under North Carolina General Statutes 158-7.1, The Local 
Development Act of 1925, as amended, and 1987 Sessions Laws, Chapter 1002, a Local Act 
applying to the County and City. 

 
III. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

 
A. Independent Agreement.  This Agreement and the conditions hereof only relate to the 

provisions and grants from the County and City set forth herein and do not limit or affect other 
commitments made by the County and City, the State of North Carolina, or other entities. 

 
B. Governing Law.  This Agreement has been drafted and shall be interpreted under the laws of 

the State of North Carolina and in the event any provision is found by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be unenforceable or unconstitutional, all other provisions shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 

C.  Binding Agreement.  The parties hereto acknowledge that this Agreement and the foregoing 
actions and grants each represent binding contractual agreements among the parties hereto and 
that Michael Aram, Inc. is acting in reliance upon this Agreement and the provisions and grants 
provided herein in its decision as to whether it will expand its investment in Goldsboro/Wayne 
County, North Carolina. 

 
D. Assignment.  This Agreement shall be assignable by Michael Aram, Inc. to any entity that is 

controlled by, controls or under common control with Michael Aram, Inc. or in the case of a 
sale of substantially all of the operating assets of the facility, this Agreement may be assigned 
to the purchaser of the facility so long as the purchaser complies with this Agreement. 
 

E. Survival.  The contractual commitments provided for herein and made by the parties hereto 
shall be deemed to continue into the future, survive, and remain binding upon future elected 
officials fully permitted under applicable law.    
                                                                          

F. Force Majeure.  Michael Aram, Inc. shall not assume any responsibility for any event or failure 
to act that is due to any cause in whole or in part that is beyond Michael Aram, Inc. control, 
even if advised of same, foreseeable or in contemplation of the parties, including without 
limitation force majeure, the public enemy, fire, flood, earthquake, hurricane, strike or labor 
disputes, boycott, the inability to obtain raw materials, labor or transportation, the loss of any 
public or private supplied utilities, the regulations issued by any government or any of its 
agencies, acts of God, or any other cause similar or dissimilar to the foregoing. 

 
G. Entire Agreement.  This writing contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto and 

may be amended only by writing signed by all parties hereto.              



            
 

 - 3 -  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and year first above 
written. 
 

 
WAYNE COUNTY      Attest:                      
 
 
 
____________________________________  ______________________________ 
E. Ray Mayo, Chairman     Carol Bowden, Clerk to the Board 
Wayne County Board of Commissioners 
 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act.   
     

    BY:        

                Allison Speight, Finance Director 

 
 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO     Attest: 
 
 
 
____________________________________  ______________________________ 
William W. (“Bill”) Broadway, Mayor Pro Tem  Melissa Capps, Goldsboro City Clerk 
City of Goldsboro      Attest: 
    
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act.   
     

    BY:        

                Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director 

 
Michael Aram, Inc.      Attest:                      
 
 
 
By:  ____________________________________  ______________________________ 
        Secretary 
                                        
Title:  ___________________________________  
 
 
 
 
 



            
 

 - 4 -  

EXHIBIT A 
 

Performance Goals 
 

Year Annual  
Job 

Increase 
(minimum) 

Total  
Jobs in 
County 
and City 

(minimum 
as of 

12.31.19) 

Non 
Depreciated 

Capital 
Investment 

Increase 
(minimum) 

Capital 
Investment 
Cumulative 

Totals 
(minimum) 

County 
Grant 

Annual 
New 

Increment 
(maximum)

County 
Grant 

Payment 
Year 

(Amount 
attributed to 
prior year 

achievement) 

City Grant 
Annual 

New 
Increment 

(maximum)

City Grant 
Payment 

Year 
(Amount 

attributed to 
prior year 

achievement)

2019 53 53 $3,680,000 $3,680,000 $17,000 $  - 0 - $17,000 $-0- 
2020 5 58 $0 $0 $ 17,000 $17,000 $17,000 $17,000 
2021 5 63 $0 $0 $ 16,000 $ 17,000 $16,000 $17,000 
2022 5 68 $0 $0 $ 25,000 $ 16,000 $25,000 $16,000 
2023 48 116 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $ 25,000 $ 25,000 $25,000 $25,000 
2024 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $ 25,000 N/A $25,000 
Totals 116 116 $5,680,000 $5,680,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 
         

 

 

Calculation Methodology: 

Michael Aram, Inc. performance against the job creation, job maintenance, and the capital investment goals 
shall be reviewed by the County and City after submission by Michael Aram, Inc. before September of each 
year, beginning in CY 2019 for performance year 2019.  The total amount of capital investment and job 
increases as of January 1st of that year shall be calculated; the total for each shall be expressed as a 
percentage of the respective total projected goal.  The average of the two percentages shall be the 
achievement percentage of capital investment and job creation and the grant funds that shall be actually 
awarded in and for each calendar year based on that achievement, subject to the County and City Grant 
Annual New increment maximum and the following.  Should the average percentage of the cumulative 
projected goal capital investment and job increase be less than 100% as of January 1st of any given year, the 
County and City shall accrue the amount of funds budgeted but unearned and such funds shall be paid out in 
the first year Michael Aram, Inc. attains in a given year at least 100% of its cumulative projected goals, in 
addition to paying the new increment amount of funds budgeted for that year.  The payments by the County 
and City, should Michael Aram, Inc. be current in all tax payments for that fiscal year and to the extent 
provided above that performance goals be met, shall be made by September 30th of each year beginning in 
2020, for calendar year 2019.  This grant shall expire on December 31, 2024.  For clarification, if Michael 
Aram, Inc. does not submit performance data for a year before September of the normal review year, the 
funds budgeted will accrue and be reviewed by the County and City during the review year following 
Michael Aram, Inc. submission, but not after December 31, 2024 (that is, when the grant expires).   
 
 
 
 
 
 



            
 

 - 5 -  

Example of Calculation Methodology: 
 
 

 A B C D E 

Year 

Annual Job 
Increase 

Goal 
(minimum) 

Total Jobs 
Increase 

Cumulative 
Goal 

Total Jobs Increase Cumulative 
Attained 
(% = C/B) 

Capital 
Investment 
Cumulative 
Totals Goal 

Actual 
Investment 

Cumulative Totals 
(%=E/D) 

 
2019 53 53 36(67%) $2,880,000 $2,332,800 (81%) 
2020 5 58 22(100%) -0- $547,200 (100%) 
2021 5 63 63(100%) -0- $-0- 
2022 5 68 68(100%) -0- $-0- 
2023 48 116 116(100%) $2,000,000 $2,000,000 (100%) 
2024 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Totals 116 116 116 (100%) $5,880,000 $5,880,000 (100%) 

 
 
 
 
 
Year 2020 
 (For calendar year 2019) 
       Average % attained = (67% [Jobs] + 81% [Investment]) ÷ 2 = 74% 
      Amount due from County payable by September 30, 2020 = .74 x $17,000 = $12,580 
     Amount unearned and being accrued $17,000 - $12,580 =$4,420 
 Amount due from the City payable by September 30, 2020= .74 x $17,000= $12,580 
 Amount unearned and being accrued $17,000 - $12,580=$4,420 
 
Year 2021 
 (For calendar year 2020) 
 Average % attained = (100% [Jobs] + 100% [Investment]) ÷ 2 = 100% 
 Amount due from County payable by September 30, 2019 = 1.00 x $17, 000 = $17,000 

 2019 Accruals now earned and also due from County payable by  
September 30, 2021 = $4,420 

 Total due from County payable by September 30, 2021 = $17,000 + $4,420 = $21,420 
 Amount due from City payable by September 30, 2021 = 1.00 x $17, 000 = $17,000 

 2019 Accruals now earned and also due from County payable by  
September 30, 2021 = $4,420 

 Total due from City payable by September 30, 2020 = $17,000 + $4,420 = $21,420 
 
Year 2022 
 (For calendar year 2021) 

Average % attained = (100% [Jobs] + 100% [Investment]) ÷ 2 = 100% 
 Amount due from County payable by September 30, 2022 = 1.00[cap] x $16,000 = $16,000 
  Amount due from City payable by September 30, 2021 = 1.00[cap] x $16,000 = $16,000 
 
  
  



            
 

 - 6 -  

Year 2023 
 (For calendar year 2022) 

Average % attained = (100% [Jobs] + 100% [Investment]) ÷ 2 = 100% 
 Amount due from County payable by September 30, 2023 = 1.00 x $25,000 = $25,000 
 Amount due from City payable by September 30, 2023 = 1.00 x $25,000 = $25,000 
 
Year 2024 
 (For calendar year 2023) 
 Performance Goals completed as of December 31, 2021; County final payment by  

September 30, 2024 for Year 2023 goals achievement. Grant amount earned and paid. 
Average % attained = (100% [Jobs] + 100% [Investment]) ÷ 2 = 100% 

 Amount due from County payable by September 30, 2024 = 1.00 x $25,000 = $87,000 
Amount due from City payable by September 30, 2024 = 1.00 x $25,000 = $87,000 

 
 
 
 
Definitions: 
 

“Capital Investment” shall be the ad valorem tax value of the property located in the County and City 
that is owned by Michael Aram, Inc. its affiliates, or financing entities where Michael Aram, Inc. or its 
affiliates maintain operational control of the property.  Any disputes as to the calculation of Capital 
Investment shall be subject to mediation between senior executives of the applicable parties, or if such 
mediation is not successful by an action at law or in equity with venue being in a court of competent 
jurisdiction in Wayne County, North Carolina. 

 
“Budget” unless otherwise agreed in this Agreement, the County and City shall approve a budget for 
the specific grant amount offered to Michael Aram, Inc. by July 1st of each year that the respective grant 
is offered, for payment by the agreed-upon date. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No provision of this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as creating a pledge of the faith and credit of the County within the 
meaning of any constitutional debt limitation. No provision of this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted neither as delegating 
governmental powers nor as a donation or a lending of the credit of the County within the meaning of the State Constitution. No 
provision of this Agreement shall be construed to pledge or to create a lien on any class or source of the County's moneys, nor shall any 
provision of the Agreement restrict to any extent prohibited by law, any action or right of action on the part of any future County 
governing body. To the extent of any conflict between this paragraph and any other provisions of this Agreement, this paragraph shall 
take priority. 



H











CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
ORDER APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, having held a public hearing on 
November 18, 2019 to consider Conditional Use Permit application number: 

 

CU‐12‐19 Henry Battle ‐ East side of S. James Street between Spruce Street and Pine 
Street 

To allow the operation of a place of entertainment with ABC permits within the Central 
Business District (CBD) zoning district, having heard all the evidence and arguments 
presented and reports from City Officials, and having received recommendation for 
approval from the Goldsboro Planning  Commission pertaining to said application, 
makes the following findings of fact. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

The  City  Council  makes  the  CONCLUSION  that  the  proposed  use  does  satisfy  the  general 
conditions  imposed  on  the  Council  in  its  deliberations  for  issuing  a  Conditional  Use  Permit 
under  Sections  5.4  Table  of  Permitted  Uses;  and  5.5.4  Special  and  Conditional  Use  Specific 
Regulations pertaining to places of entertainment with ABC uses permitted within the Central 
Business District (CBD) zoning district.    

In addition, the Council approved site and landscape plans detailing the proposed development 
as submitted.  The following modifications apply to this request: 

1. Modification of the building’s side yard setbacks from 15 ft. to 0 ft. along the 
northern and southern property line. 

2. Modification of City street tree requirement. 

3. Modification of Type C (20 ft. wide) landscape buffer along the northern property 
line. 

4. Modification of the Type A (5 ft. wide) landscape buffer along the southern property 
line. 

 
Based upon the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT, the City Council makes the CONCLUSION that the 
proposed use does satisfy the general conditions imposed on the Council in its deliberations for 
issuing a Conditional Use Permit under Section 2.2.8 of the City of Goldsboro Zoning Ordinance 
with the following stipulations: 
 

1. The hours of operation are by reservation only.  Monday through Sunday with no 
events after 12 midnight. 

2. No on‐street parking to occur in front of residential properties beginning at 306 S. 
James Street north towards W. Spruce Street. 



 

Upon motion made by Councilmember        and seconded by Councilmember 

      , the Council approved the applicant's request for a Conditional Use 

Permit to allow the operation places of entertainment with ABC uses permitted within the 

Central Business District (CBD) zoning district. 

Therefore, because the City Council concludes that all of the general conditions precedent to 

the issuance of a CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT have BEEN satisfied,  

 
IT IS ORDERED that the application for the issuance of a CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT be 
APPROVED. 
 
  Thus ordered this _______ day of ___________________, 2019. 

 
            ______________________________ 
            Chuck Allen, Mayor 

 

            ______________________________ 
            Ronald T. Lawrence, City Attorney 



ITEM_____________ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

DECEMBER 16, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset 
Bids for Surplus Real Property 

BACKGROUND: Staff has received an offer to purchase on several city/county-owned 
properties.  Board must either accept or reject the offer, and if accepted 
authorize advertisement for upset bids (G.S. §160A-266 and §160A-269). 

DISCUSSION: The following offers have been received for the sale of surplus real 
property under Negotiated offer, advertisement, and upset bid process 
(G.S. §160A-266(a) (3)) 

611 E. Pine Street 
Offeror:  Willie E. Lewis 
Offer:  $1,675.00 
Bid Deposit: $85.75 
Parcel # (REID): 0050897   Pin #: 3509134831 
Tax Value: $3,350.00  Zoning: R-6 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council, by motion: 

1. Accept or reject offer on 611 E. Pine Street.  If accepted, adopt
attached resolution authorizing Finance to advertise for upset bids.

Date:  _______________________________________________ 
Catherine F. Gwynn, Finance Director 

Date: 
Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager 

12/10/19

I



RESOLUTION NO. 2019- _____ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain real property at 611 E. Pine 

Street (Pin #3509134831); and  
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269 permits the city to sell real property by upset bid, 

after receipt of an offer for the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has received an offer to purchase the property described above, in the amount of 

$1,675.00 (One Thousand Six Hundred Seventy Five Dollars and no/100) submitted by Willie E. Lewis 
(Offeror); and 

 
WHEREAS, Offeror has paid the required five percent (5%) deposit on his/her offer in the amount of 

$85.75 (Eighty Five Dollars and 75/100); 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, 

that: 
 

1) The City Council authorizes sale of the property described above through the upset bid procedure of North 
Carolina General Statute § 160A-269. 

2) The Finance Director shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation within its jurisdiction. The notice shall describe the property and the amount of the offer, and 
shall state the terms under which the offer may be upset. 

3) Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their offer to the 
office of the Finance Director at 200 N. Center Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530 during normal business hours 
within 10 days after the notice of sale is published. At the conclusion of the 10-day period, the Finance 
Director shall open the bids, if any, and the highest such bid will become the new offer. If there is more 
than one bid in the highest amount, the first such bid received will become the new offer. 

4) If a qualifying higher bid is received, the Finance Director shall cause a new notice of upset bid to be 
published, and shall continue to do so until a 10-day period has passed without any qualifying upset bid 
having been received. At that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be reported to the City Council.  

5) A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent (10%) of the first 
$1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the remainder of that offer.  

6) A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent (5%) of 
the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier’s check, or certified check. The city will return the 
deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying 
higher bid is received. The city will return the deposit of the final high bidder at closing. 

7) The terms of the final sale are:  
a) City Council must approve the final high offer before the sale is closed, which it will do within 30 

days after the final upset bid period has passed. 
b) The Wayne County Board of Commissioners must approve the final sale by concurrence after final 

approval by City Council.  
c) Buyer must pay with cash at the time of closing. 
d) Buyer must pay closing costs. 

8) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the final high bid is 
accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids. 



9) If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth above is hereby 
accepted. City staff is authorized to seek concurrence from the Wayne County Board of Commissioners 
and upon such approval, the appropriate city officials are authorized to execute the instruments necessary 
to convey the property to Offeror. 

 
This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this _________________ day of 

___________________, 2019. 
 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 
Attest: _________________________  

City Clerk    
 



12/10/2019 ConnectGIS Feature Report

https://wayne.connectgis.com/DownloadFile.ashx?i=_ags_map92328137df704beaab579641a73161edx.htm&t=printid 1/2

Wayne
Printed December 10, 2019

See Below for Disclaimer



12/10/2019 ConnectGIS Feature Report

https://wayne.connectgis.com/DownloadFile.ashx?i=_ags_map92328137df704beaab579641a73161edx.htm&t=printid 2/2

OBJECTID
4031

PIN
3509134831

Owner Name
WAYNE COUNTY &

Co-Owner Name
CITY OF GOLDSBORO

Owner Address 1
PO BOX 227

Owner Address 2
 

Owner Address 3
 

Owner City
GOLDSBORO

Owner State
NC

Owner Zip
27533-0227

Unit or Apt
 

Deed Date
7/22/2015 12:00:00 AM

REID
0050897

Deed Book
3169

Deed Page
545

Sale Month
7

Sale Year
2015

Sale Price
0

Previous Deed Book
01581

Previous Deed Page
0576

Previous Sale Month
4

Previous Sales Year
1997

Previous Sale Price
26000

Property Use
01 - SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

Record Source
Owner

Property Address
611 E PINE ST

Legal Description
LTS 13 & 14 BLK I GULLEY

Acres
1

Neighborhood
01403

Account Number
79266550

Township Code
12

Building Value
0

Outbuilding Value
0

Land Value
3350

Total Market Value
3350

Total Assessed Value
3350

Vacant Or Improved
V

Vacant or Improved 2
I

Users of the GIS information/data contained in this web mapping application are hereby notified that the information was compiled from recorded deeds, plats and
other public records and data. Users are notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be consulted for verification of the data contained
in this information. The County of Wayne and the mapping companies or other entities assume no legal responsibility for the information contained herein. By accepting
this disclaimer you agree and understand the disclaimer.



S

LE
SL

IE
ST

E

PINE ST

S
SL

OC
UM

B
ST

404

301

317

308

406

600

304

312

318

414

310

300 B

305

700

303 B

305

306

402

611

303 A

314

.

50'

54'
16

6'

16
6'

611 E Pine St
3509134831

Standard Lot







Item _________ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

December 16, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Budget Amendment - 2019-2020 Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment Partnerships 
Programs (HOME) 

BACKGROUND: On August 28, 2019, the City of Goldsboro was notified by the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) of 
the FY19-20 Annual Action Plan approval and grant allocation 
totaling $543,211 from Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) in the amount of $328,479 and HOME Investment 
Partnerships Programs (HOME) in the amount of $214,732.   

For the purpose of assisting low-to-moderate-income citizens 
of Goldsboro in improving their quality of life through vital 
housing and community development programs.  The City will 
utilize its entitlement funds during program year, July 1, 
2019 through June 30, 2020.  The City was granted a 100% 
HOME Match Reduction for FY19-20. Therefore, the City will 
not be required to provide local matching funds for the 
$214,732 in HOME this allocation. 

DISCUSSION: Since the Release of Funds for these two grants occurred after 
the adoption of the 2019-2020 Operating Budget, monies to 
carry out activities under these two programs are not reflected 
in the current budget.  The City's Budget Ordinance must be 
amended prior to the expenditure of these funds.   

RECOMMENDATION: By motion, adopt the attached Ordinance amending the 2019-
2020 Budget Ordinance in order to permit the expenditure of 
funds for activities included under the City's CDBG and 
HOME Programs. 

Date:   
Shycole Simpson-Carter 
Community Relations Director 

Date:   
Timothy M. Salmon 
City Manager 

ssc 

J



ORDINANCE NO.  2019-_______

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE
OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO

 FOR THE 2019-2020 FISCAL YEAR

     

     

          a.  Establishing a Revenue Line Item entitled "CDBG-FY 19-20"  (22-0003-8501)
               in the amount of $328,479.00; and

          b.  Increasing the Revenue Line Item entitled "CDBG Loan Principal Income"
                (22-0003-8650) in the amount of $2,870.00; and

          c.  Increasing the Revenue Line Item entitled "CDBG Loan Interest Income"  
               (22-0003-8651) in the amount of $250.00; and

          d.  Establishing the following Line Items of Expenditure and corresponding
               amounts:

Line Item Total Allocation
22-3224-1213    Salaries and Wages- Administrative 43,771$                        
22-3224-1214    Salaries and Wages -Rehabilitation 15,557$                        
22-3224-1500    Rehabilitation Homeowner 3,120$                          
22-3224-1811    Social Security (Admin.) 3,782$                          
22-3224-1812    Social Security (Rehab.) 1,190$                          
22-3224-1823    NCLGERS Retirement (Admin.) 3,870$                          
22-3224-1824    NCLGERS Retirement (Rehab.) 1,403$                          
22-3224-1831    Hospital Insurance ( Admin.) 4,273$                          
22-3224-1832    Hospital Insurance ( Rehab.) 2,544$                          
22-3224-1842    Public Facilities 208,454$                      
22-3224-1908    After-School Enrichment/Public Services 33,635$                        
22-3224-1991    Consultant Services (Admin.) 10,000$                        

           e.  Establishing a Revenue Line Item entitled "HOME Program FY 19-20" (22-0003-8502)
                in the amount of $214,732.00; and

           f.  Increasing the Revenue Line Item entitled "HOME Loan Principal Income"
               (22-0003-8652) in the amount of $3,449.00; and 

          g.  Increasing the Revenue Line Item entitled "HOME Loan Interest Income"
               (22-0003-8653) in the amount of $599.00; and

          h.  Establishing the following Line Item of Expenditure and corresponding amounts:

22-3225-1213    Salaries and Wages -Administrative 15,557$                        
22-3225-1811    Social Security (Admin.) 1,190$                          
22-3225-1823    NCLGERS Retirement (Admin.) 1,403$                          
22-3225-1831    Hospital Insurance (Admin.) 2,544$                          
22-3225-1904    Homebuyer Assistance 90,000$                        
22-3225-9961    CHDO Set-Aside 107,307$                      
22-3225-2601    Office Supplies (Admin.) 779$                             

     2.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after this the 16th day of Decembe, 2019.   

___________________________
Attested by; Mayor

____________________________
City Clerk

     1.  The 2019-20 Budget Ordinance for the Community Development Block Grant Fund be and is hereby amended by:

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has been designated an "Entitlement City" and will receive $328,479 in Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds from the Department of Housing and Urban Development for Fiscal Year 2019-20; and 

WHEREAS, in addition, the City will receive $214,732 under the Federal HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME)
funds from the Department of Housing and Urban Development for Fiscal Year 2019-20; and

WHEREAS, funds for the Community Development Block Grant Program and the HOME Investment Partnership Program
have already been released to the City of Goldsboro for various activities at scattered sites within the City; and

        WHEREAS, these funds represent new monies, they are presently not reflected in the 2019-2020 Operating Budget.

        NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that:



SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

DISCUSSION: 

ITEM, ____ _ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

DECEMBER 16,2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

Change Order No. 13 - Phase N Sewer Collection 
Rehabilitation- Formal Bid No. 2018-004 

The Phase N Sewer Rehab Project provides for installation 
of approximately 30,900 linear feet of cast-in-place-pipe 
(CIPP) rehabilitation of existing sanitary mains, including 
various root treatments, obstruction removals, cutting of 
intruding taps and asphalt or concrete surface repairs 
directly associated with the completion and restoration 
work detailed in th~ contract specifications. City Council 
approved the original contract in the amount of 
approximately $9.3M. 

Through various field changes with cost savings of 
approximately $1.5M the contractor was able to add 
additional work, not in the original contract, but within the 
original project area. Due to this additional rehab work, T. 
A. Loving Company provided costs totaling $867,487.29. 
There remains approximately $600K of cost savings to 
potentially be applied to more additional work. 

This additional work will require the contract completion 
time to be extended by 103 days. The amended contract 
completion date for the remaining rehabilitation work is 
April2, 2020. 

Staff recommends issuing a change order to the current 
contract with T. A. Loving for the Phase IV sewer 
collection rehabilitation project. We have reviewed this 
change order with the Finance Dire.ctor and determined that 
funds are available from the Clean Water Revolving Fund 
Loan. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Date: J/ Vt=(: / 9 

Date: ------------------
Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager 

K



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
CHANGE ORDER NO. 13 WITH T. A. LOVING COMPANY FOR 
PHASE IV SEWER COLLECTION REHABILITATION PROJECT 

FORMAL BID #2018-004 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro awarded a contract on July 
16, 2018 to T. A. Loving Company for the Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 
Project; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro recommends additional 
work for the rehabilitation project; and 

WHEREAS, T. A. Loving Company submitted a cost of $867,487.29 for the 
additional work; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the City of 
Goldsboro to issue a change order to Contract #2018-004 with T. A. Loving Company for 
$867,487 .29; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute a change order for 
$867,487.29 with T. A. Loving Company for Phase IV Sewer Collection 
Rehabilitation Project. 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this ----
day of __ , 2019. 

Mayor 

Attested by: 

City Clerk 



City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

November 2019 

1. Human Resources
2. Community Relations
3. Paramount Theater-GEC
4. Inspections
5. Downtown Development
6. Information Technology
7. Public Works
8. Public Utilities
9. Finance

10. Planning
11. Engineering
12. Fire
13. Police
14. Parks and Recreation
15. Travel and Tourism

Item L 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES  
November 2019 
Prepared By: Pamela C. Leake  
Date Prepared: December 9, 2019 

The Human Resources Department posted 20 vacancies this month. 96 notices were sent to applicants not 
selected for an interview and 14 were sent to applicants interviewed but not selected for hire. We 
welcomed six new hires this month (all part-time/seasonal): Atleassia	 Carr,	 Brandon	 Ives,	 Luke	
Pittman,	and Embria	Willis	(Solid	Waste	Technician	–	Public	Works)	and Abbigail	Henn	and	Delontae	
Jackson	(Recreation	Aide‐	Parks	and	Recreation). There were four (4) reductions in employment this 
month: three resignations and one part-time assignment ended. Total employment for November was 601:	
458 full time and 143 part-time. Employee turnover rate (voluntary) was 0.33% .    

Departmental Activities 
 Open Enrollment for medical benefits ended November 19.

 November 15 was the deadline for supervisors to complete annual evaluations for the period ending
September 30.  85% were complete as of November 30.

 HR staff is working on final revisions to the personnel policy. It will be distributed to staff in
December for review and comments and presented to Council for approval next year.

 Staff is working with the Fire Department for their Fire Engineer assessment in December.

 Interviews were held for the top three firms considered for the pay/class study.
 The Human Resources Director conducted supervisory training at Public Works on November 15.

The session covered recruiting and hiring, as well as interview Do’s and Don’ts.
 Event planning is underway for the Employee Appreciation Program on December 10. Employees

will be recognized for their years of service with the City.

Safety Highlights  
 Fire Extinguisher training was held at Public Works. Thirty employees attended the session.
 Attended vehicle accident appeals hearing on November 18.
 Conducted SHARP Inspection on November 19 with Chuck Murdock (safety consultant) for Public

Utility Departments (Water Treatment Plant, Wastewater, Compost) and Park Maintenance. No
citations issued. Paperwork is now pending to submit application for approval.

 Attended the Eastern NC safety school update. Currently researching on-line demos to share with
staff and developed 10-hour OSHA awareness class.

 The Safety Officer investigated one (1) vehicle accident this month. The Safety review committee
met November 26. Two vehicle accident cases were reviewed; both employees found at-fault.
Recommendations will be submitted to the City Manager for review.

 Monthly fire extinguisher checks were completed.  Safety inspection conducted at Golf
Maintenance facility and met with Golf Director to discuss items for review.

Occupational Health  
This month’s Health Beat focused on blood-borne pathogens and flu shots. Ten employees attended blood-
borne pathogens training. The occupational health nurse coordinated with Wayne Pharmacy for the flu 
shots. Twenty-six were administered this month.   



2 

There were 65 clinic visits. Four non-DOT random drug screens were performed; all negative. No DOT drug 
screens were performed.   

2019 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JULY AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Applications 348 320 346 542 283 203 401 247 61 274 620 331 
New Hires  11 7 1 3 3 1 8 6 6 2 0 4 
Separations  3 3 6 3 1 5 4 3 5 3 2 3 
Vehicle 
Accidents 

7 4 6 3 6 4 5 5 0 4  2 4 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

2 4 3 0 2 2 0 0 0 0  0 1 

2018 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JULY AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Applications 264 247 266 204 274 231 398 346 230 256 244 219 265 
New Hires  9 2 3 2 2 5 7 8 1 1 4 2 4 
Separations  3 3 3 4 7 3 6 4 5 2 4 9 4 
Vehicle 
Accidents 

3 0 1 3 2 6 8 3 3 5 7 5 4 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

2 0 3 1 1 2 2 0 0 2 0 1 1 

Note:	Hiring	and	separation	statistics	represent	full‐time	personnel.  



1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 
November 2019 
Prepared By:  Shycole Simpson-Carter, Community Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  December 10, 2019 

 Due to the lack of a quorum, the scheduled Commission on Community Relations and Development
meeting for Tuesday, November 12, 2019 was adjourned with no official business discussed.  The next
scheduled meeting is Tuesday, January 14, 2020 at 6:00 pm.

 The Department received one (1) housing complaint and four (4) request for assistance with resources.
Description of said complaint was mold within primary place of residence and the requests involved
assistance with utility bill, food, and volunteer opportunities.  Complaint was submitted through the 311
GIS system or to the appropriate City Department for resolution or designated community/state
resources.

 The Goldsboro Mayor’s Youth Council (GYC) met on the following Wednesdays, November 6th and 20th.
The next scheduled meetings are tentatively planned for the following Wednesdays, January 8th and 15th.
For the month of November, GYC’s community service activity was volunteering for Downtown Lights
Up.  Several GYC members attended a Mini-Grant Conference in Rocky Mount November 15th -17th for an
opportunity to develop program ideas, write grant proposals, screen grants submitted by youth groups,
and/or implement defined program objectives to name a few.

 The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MPCD) met on Thursday, November 21, 2019.  
The next scheduled meeting is Thursday, January 23, 2020.  The MCPD continues to be actively engaged 
in the planning process of a Special Needs Prom that First Baptist Church is sponsoring in February 
2020.  This event is being funded through a grant from the Tim Tebow Foundation.

 The City’s FY18-19 Consolidated Action Plan Evaluation Report (CAPER) was on 15-day public review
November 11th to November 25th.  The public hearing was held on November 18th during Council Regular
Meeting to allow citizens to provide their comments on the FY18-19 CAPER.  The FY18-19 CAPER and the
three (3) public comments were submitted to HUD on November 28th.

Housing 1 4 5 2 2 4 2 2 2 1 1 2

Consumer & Other 3 4 3 4 3 4 6 1 4 0 4 3

Housing 5 5 9 3 2 3 1 3 0 9 0 1 3

Consumer & Other 1 2 0 0 3 2 9 10 2 5 7 2 4

Oct Nov Dec AVGMay Jun Jul Aug Sep2018	Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr

2019	Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr Oct Nov Dec AVGMay Jun Jul Aug Sep



 

 
 

1 

PARAMOUNT & GEC 
November 2019 
Prepared By:  Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared: 12/09/2019 

	
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐PARAMOUNT	THEATRE‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 

 November	Activities	included: 19 event-rental days: 6 public performances (Dailey&Vincent, 
Embers, NC Symphony, Stagestruck White Christmas), 3 private events, 3 public events, 7 
rehearsal days. Staff attended conference and began research and booking for 2020-2021 season.  

 Repairs	and	Maintenance: 	
o HVAC system and control study; seeking short-term efficacy, long-term cost reduction.	
o Emergency Lights and Fire Inspection; resolved with Public Utilities and Fire Marshal.	
o Power Outage; working with IT on solutions for power backup (ups and/or generator).	

	

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐FINANCIAL‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
	

o Expenses –$32,374:       Labor ‐   $26,039 /Operational – $6,335     
o Revenues ‐ $20,513:         Rentals ‐$1,860 /Tickets $18,293 /Concession $360   

*August 2018 revenue reflects box office fees transferred from 2017/2018 fiscal year.  Sept. 2018 expense includes substantial repair to building exterior. 

 

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐GOLDSBORO EVENT CENTER‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 

 November	Activities	included: 14 events (2 multi‐day); 2 weddings, 4 private, 6 City. 

 Repairs	and	Maintenance:  
o Frequent toilet-plumbing issues during events; evenings and weekend plumbing results in 

“emergency rate” charges.  Replacing and/or adapting units under consideration. 
o Weather damaged façade repairs under consideration. 

 

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐FINANCIAL‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
o Expenses – $6,916:    Labor ‐  $5,281 /Operational – $1,635 
o Revenues – $7,799:             Rentals ‐ $6,500 /Concessions – $1,299 
o City Use – $6,483:     Value of non‐Revenue City use: 8 events = $6,483 

 
  Jan‐19  Feb‐19  Mar‐19  April‐19  May‐19  June‐19  July‐19 Aug‐19  Sept‐19 Oct‐19  Nov‐19  Dec‐19  2019 Total 2019 Average

Exp  $9,198  $8,624  $13,459  $13,121  $6,968  $8,393  $6,887  $10,356  $9,001  $13,055  $6,916  $105,978  $9,634 

Rev  $4,645  $7,204  $11,475  $5,932  $2,529  $13,136  $2,000  $8,369  $12,579 $7,439  $7,799  $83,107  $7,555 

City  $1,900  $5,100  $8,525  $3,875  $7,975  $5,225  $2,075  $2,700  $4,700  $10,076  $6,483  $58,634  $5,330 
  Jan‐18  Feb‐18  Mar‐18  April‐18  May‐18  June‐18  July‐18 Aug‐18  Sept‐18 Oct‐18  Nov‐18  Dec‐18  2018 Total 2018 Average

Exp  $5,379  $7,310  $14,096  $14,484  $7,852  $7,072  $9,083  $11,367  $7,815  $16,427  $8,760  $10,306 $119,951 $9,996 

Rev  $2,890  $5,556  $7,526  $15,201  $9,980  $4,309  $7,971  $7,131  $2,143  $10,781  $3,326  $5,224  $82,038  $6,837 

City  $750  $4,800  $4,750  $4,975  $9,475  $4,325  $3,425  $6,175  $3,925  $12,475  $9,150  $7,000  $71,225  $5,935 

 

  Jan‐19  Feb‐19  Mar‐19  April‐19  May‐19  June‐19 July‐19  Aug‐19  Sept‐19 Oct‐19  Nov‐19  Dec‐19  2019 Total 2019 Average

Exp  $34,447  $33,393  $68,435  $41,297  $25,832  $34,713 $21,916 $41,241 $43,600 $50,200 $32,374    $427,448 $38,859

Rev  $12,993  $13,259  $15,347  $5,406  $20,107  $19,988  $8,423  $18,090  $7,824  $12,301  $20,513    $154,425  $14,038 

  Jan‐18  Feb‐18  Mar‐18  April‐18  May‐18  June‐18 July‐18  Aug‐18  Sept‐18 Oct‐18  Nov‐18  Dec‐18  2018 Total 2018 Average

Exp  $32,968  $25,012  $48,050  $39,962  $32,137  $24,298 $55,630 $40,550 $68,803 $42,545 $40,161  $32,024 $482,140 $40,178

Rev  $16,549  $7,471  $35,001  $8,954  $15,408  $11,597  $6,293  $17,910  $332  $5,741  $23,896  $16,954  $179,948  $14,995 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
November, 2019 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared: 12/03/19 
 
The valuation of all building permits issued during the month of November totaled $10,273,641.  Three (3) of these 
permits were new residential single-family dwellings at a valuation of $999,475. 
 
The valuation of all miscellaneous (Mechanical, gas, insulation, electrical, plumbing, fire, sprinkler, pool, tank, 
demolition, signs, business inspection, & itinerant merchant) permits issued during this time period totaled 
$994,002. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $46,349.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $2,865 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $1,580. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $680. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 500 inspections for the month.  During the month of November, seven (7) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 236 permits were issued for the month.   Forty-five (45) plan reviews were 
completed for November. We now have a total of 128 residential structures in the Minimum Housing Process 
and 7 commercial structures in the Demolition by Neglect Process. 
 

 

2019 Jan Fed Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg

Permit Valu.

All Bldgs (mm) $2 $14 $6 $428K $8 $2 $4 $11 $2 $3 $10 $6

Residential (k) $805 $1mm $599 $0 2mm $767 $580 $557 $985 $514 $999 $800

Misc  (mm) $5 $2 $2 $2 $2 $1 $3 $2 $1 $2 $1 $2

Permit Fee (k( $34 $40 $48 $27 $46 $41 $38 $40 $26 $23 $46 $37

Inspections 614 603 531 497 603 488 533 663 516 447 500 545

Permits Issued 296 296 270 271 334 296 329 255 226 248 236 278

Plan Reviews 39 47 65 46 34 43 90 35 51 70 45 51

Min Housing 171 99 102 118 121 125 126 111 121 129 128 123

      In Process

2018 Jan Fed Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg

Permit Valu.

All Bldgs (mm) $10 $13 $3 $5 $5 $2 $5 $6 $3 $5 $12 $6 $6

Residential (k) $848 $518 $1mm $786 $1mm $2mm $1mm $2mm $120 $207 $246 $807 $882

Misc  (mm) $2 $2 $2 $3 $2 $1 $2 $2 $1 $1 $2 $1 $2

Permit Fee (k) $31 $33 $30 $31 $48 $51 $65 $60 $21 $41 $49 $21 $40

Inspections 524 539 544 564 582 692 675 659 345 589 516 373 550

Permits Issued 258 263 284 295 418 351 344 373 279 326 258 226 306

Plan Reviews 75 41 52 74 85 39 42 67 51 85 39 50 58

Min Housing 163 163 143 152 152 152 161 161 161 161 163 171 159

      In Process



1 

Downtown Development Department 
November 2019 
Prepared By: Julie Metz 
Date Prepared: November 30, 2019 
  
Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

 Continued to work through TIGER VIII developments.    

 Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 20 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or 
business interests regarding downtown. 

 Over the past month, staff visited downtown businesses 25 different times. 

 Worked through updates related to the TIGER VIII grant.                

 Helped facilitate and participate in a neighborhood plan meeting. 

Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  

 Created ads for Go, Buzz, 107.9, digital billboards and News‐Argus for upcoming downtown events. 

 Attended multiple Merchants Association meetings throughout the month. 

 Hosted the Small Business Center in Downtown event on the first Monday of the month. 

 Prepared and submitted the monthly Four Square report for the TIGER Grant to FTA and began preparing for the 
Quarterly meeting in Atlanta to discuss our project’s status.  

 Attended and presented at the SJAFB Newcomer’s Meeting in the month of November. 

 Hosted multiple LAUNCH meetings throughout the month of November. 

 Hosted a Historic Tax Credit Press Conference at 139 W Walnut St on November 1st. 

 Attended and presented at the County Commissioners meeting on November 5th. 

 Attended the SJAFB Community Action Board meeting on November 5th. 

 Attended the Main Street Regional meeting in Clinton, NC on November 8th. 

 Presented at the Problem House/Neighborhood Plan meeting on November 12th. 

 Attended the NCDDA Board of Directors meeting in Wilmington, NC on November 14th‐15th. 

 Attended the NC Entrepreneural Ecosystems Summit in Raleigh on November 18th. 

 Presented at the Rocky Mount Home of the Future Thinking Conference on November 19th. 

 Hosted a Union Station Adaptive Reuse Study presentation on November 20th. 

 Continued to work on establishing a relationship with UNC’s based NC GROWTH that will lead to a feasibility 
study to research an incubator type facility for downtown.   

DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  

 Facilitated and attended the following monthly meetings: DGDC Board (11/20), DGDC Executive Committee 
(11/08 & 11/13), DGDC Design (11/12), DGDC EV (11/12), DGDC Promotions (11/12) and Org. Work Plan (11/13). 

 Helped assist the DGDC with six (6) DGDC boardroom rentals throughout the month of November. 

 Worked with DGDC committees on the 2020 Work Plan development.  

 Facilitated and hosted a downtown tour on November 22nd. 

 Facilitated and hosted Downtown Lights Up on November 26th. 

 Facilitated and hosted free Downtown Trolley Rides on November 26th. 

 Hosted the Small Business Saturday event on November 30th. 

Upcoming Events/Activities:  

 Free Trolley rides downtown every Tuesday night and ending on December 17th from 6pm‐8pm.  



2 

 Holiday ornament sales have begun. 

 Selfie with the Elfie December 2nd‐23rd.  
 

Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased: 

 2nd Amendment on Main opened its doors on November 25th.  
 Uniquely R’s re‐opened its doors on November 26th. 
 Two micro‐breweries are underway, one located at 116 W. Chestnut Street and the other at 229 W. Pine Street.   

Other: 

 Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers/likes grew from 10,865 to 10,980 in the month of November. 



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
November, 2019  
Prepared By: Patricia Wischmann 
Date Prepared: December 9, 2019  
 

 Installed and configured multiple network devices to improve City networking infrastructure. 
 Preformed Semi-Annual update for Banner 
 Provided Sound Equipment for Veterans Day Parade 
 Attended Energov Review with Planning and Inspections. 
 Installed and configured network devices for Security at Fire Station 4 
 Removed old IT equipment from Police department. 
 Deployed new Mobile Device Terminals (MDTs) to Police Department vehicles. 
 Two employees attended Palo Alto (Firewall) training 
 Two employees attended RMS training. 
 Launched public event calendar for Travel & Tourism. 
 Launched Launchgoldsboro.com website to attract entrepreneurs to Goldsboro. 
 Scouted prospective Tsunami locations and completed paperwork for Duke Energy Progress. 
 Added licenses for RTA to include Fire and Police personnel. 
 Updated Police department MDT with updated eCitation (ticketing software). 
 Completed Site Surveys for UPS Units. 
 Performed Drone flight for Statue Inspection. 

 
 

2019 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL
               
Tickets 
Opened 

662 536 546 519 540 424 686 708 545 734 475  580 6375 

Tickets 
Closed 

551 467 575 429 496 454 942 664 503 672 498  568 6252 

Open  
Tickets 

456 490 457 549 582 612 300 342 384 446 423  458 
 

 

 
 



December 2019 Monthly Report PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT By  Richard E. A. Fletcher III

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
8.7 8.0 9.8 13.5 11.6 6.0 7.3 24.2 15.6 11.1 9.8 11.4

10.8 11.3 9.8 8.6 11.9 1.6 6.3 14.3 10.2 13.8 5.7 9.5
27 20 16 28 19 30 34 26 37 27 17 25.5
31 7 9 34 10 18 22 10 44 38 27 22.7
37 16 19 10 16 3 17 13 8 40 13 17.5

102 63 56 47 54 52 57 51 35 35 24 52.4

260 219 202 193 333 234 204 324 49 59 34 191.9
48 72 48 29 32 67 47 25 35 18 25 40.5
10 0 0 70 83 110 124 107 103 35 0 58.4
0 0 0 81 75 105 114 106 98 32 0 55.5

365 309 276 316 255 298 298 397 289 323 273 309.0
61$      53$      55$      64$      56$      65$      66$      68$      61$      67$      55$      61.0

1.0 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.9
13 78 83 87 95 99 103 79 62.32 105 85.3 80.9
0.8 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.9 0.6 0.7 0.7 1.1 0.7 0.7 0.7

4 4 7 5 6 1 8 3 2 4 8 4.7

15 12 10 11 9 12 14 13 3 21 0 10.9
56 49 52 18 15 20 18 19 17 7 32 27.5

110 143 135 16 103 64 35 45 49 109 79.2 80.7

1.26 3.85 1.27 1.1 1.9
6.05 10.52 8 7 7.9

5 6 4 2 4.3

7.4 2.9 4.0 24.0 19.0 26.3 27.5 13.2 12.8 14.7 6.8 2.7 13.4
5.1 3.3 4.6 9.5 12.5 10.3 9.3 13.2 7.3 15.5 7.7 10.8 9.1
87 25 25 45 47 64 71 34 21 27 52 14 42.7
4 14 9 12 20 13 17 14 8 22 6 5 12.0
3 32 38 45 42 23 30 26 32 9 12 10 25.2

25 32 28 36 49 76 60 61 87 78 66 54 54.3

225 195 167 224 268 204 158 150 127 204 206 171 191.6
43 72 51 70 13 77 36 61 28 89 52 16 50.7

360 341 322 366 337 316 299 362 313 456 277 277 335.5
55$      47$      55$      55$      60$      60$      60$      70$      52$      71$      52$      49$      57.2

0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.9 1.0 0.8 1.0 0.9
102 107 82 101 59 93 79 94 111 0 0 0 68.9
0.5 0.7 0.8 1.1 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.8 2.0 2.0 0.9 1.1 1.0

8 9 6 8 5 6 6 6 7 10 3 7 6.8

0 14 10 12 30 37 23 11 4 32 12 8 16.1
45 82 50 20 45 25 61 43 14 43 18 63 42.4

82.5 229 171 229 197 143 192 145 198 170 135 110 166.8
0 0 3 8.0 68.9 167.0 16.6 29.0 48.0 59.1 6.5 0 33.8
0 0 0 135 318 410 159 187 110 85 54 15 122.8

Water Repairs

Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)

Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)

Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs

Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed

Meter Install/Changed

Garage
Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed

Meter Install/Changed

Bldg 

Maint

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

Sign Repairs

Solid 

Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

e
ts

 &
 

St
o

rm
w

at
e

r Utility Cut Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs

Streets Swept (miles)

2019

B
ld

g 
 &

 

G
ro

u
n

d
s Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

Sign Repairs

ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Garage
Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 

Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

2018

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

e
t 

&
 S

to
rm

Streets Swept (miles)

Pipe-Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Buildings & Grounds: Installed and removed flags for Veterans Day and also installed Christmas lighting downtown. 
Coordinated lighting installation for Holly & Center Water tank. 
Distribution & Collections: Responded to 14 after hour calls for a total of 19.75 hours.
Streets & Storm water: Prepared Snow & Ice response equipment for upcoming season; Initiated ditch cleaning through 
Herman Park to behind First Presbyterian Church (Jackson & Ash Street areas); Graded nine dirt streets; Hauled 545 tons of 
debris to landfill which was collected from street sweeping operations this past year.



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
November 2019 
Prepared By: Michael Wagner 
Date Prepared: December 9, 2019 
 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

 The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly.  
 Plate Settler Project is proceeding as anticipated with a December 30, 2020 completion date.  
 The Comprehensive Utility Rate Study is underway with an estimated draft in late January 2020. 
 Site visit with the Army Corps of Engineers for the Neuse Cutoff Weir project.  

 
Water Reclamation Facility 

 The Water Reclamation Facility operations are proceeding smoothly. 
o With the exception of the Wasting Tank aeration system which lost a air heading. The tank 

is being drained and repaired internally.   
 The average daily flows for November were 6.92 MGD.  
 All of the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well. 

o With the exception of the 117 pump station bar screen. 
o Pecan pump station is having significant modifications to ensure compliance with current 

flows and peaking factors coming from Case Farms. 
 
Compost Facility 

 Three hundred and fifty cubic yards of compost and mulch was sold in November 2019. 
 
Historical	data	for	water	and	sewer	volumes	are	in	million	gallons	per	day	(MGD)	and	are	average	
daily	flows	for	each	month.	
 

2019	
MGD	

Jan	 Feb	 Mar	 Apr	 May	 Jun	 Jul	 Aug	 Sep	 Oct	 Nov	 Dec Monthly
Average

Water*	 6.206 6.053 6.016 6.175 7.237 7.351 7.361 6.890 6.693 6.519 6.310  6.619 
Sewer**	 11.66 11.76 12.22 11.01 7.84 8.28 7.39 6.83 7.48 6.73 6.92  8.92 
Compost	 52 319 390 552 503 437 103 121 217 508 350 322

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
	

2018	
MGD	

Jan	 Feb	 Mar	 Apr	 May	 Jun	 Jul	 Aug	 Sep	 Oct	 Nov	 Dec	 Monthly
Average

Water*	 6.625 6.232 6.262 6.017 6.303 6.83 6.632 6.727 6.149 6.692 6.374 6.027 6.405 
Sewer**	 7.66 10.45 9.97 9.41 10.77 7.83 6.71 11.50 17.46 10.54 11.48 13.97 10.64 
Compost	 395 876 686 913 951 910 220 604 157 144 233 238 527 
*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
NOVEMBER, 2019 
Prepared By: Andrea Thompson 
Date Prepared: December 10, 2019 
 

 

FY	18‐19
Actual	to	Date Actual	to	Date YTD	%

Revenues November‐18 Adjusted	Budget November‐19 Collected
General Fund 15,617,535$    45,017,296$        4,337,567$      9.64%
Utility Fund 9,558,638        20,424,368          6,072,854        29.73%
Downtown District Fund 20,303             121,701               345                  0.28%
Occupancy Tax Fund 549,568           1,113,732            416,039           37.36%
Stormwater Fund 618,806           1,467,481            510,956           34.82%
     Total 26,364,850$    68,144,578$        11,337,761$    16.64%

Expenditures
General Fund 18,076,164$    45,017,296$        16,978,864$    37.72%
Utility Fund 9,188,030        20,424,368 5,299,714 25.95%
Downtown District Fund 23,110             121,701 10,451 8.59%
Occupancy Tax Fund 490,174           1,113,732 298,741 26.82%
Stormwater Fund 325,151           1,467,481 350,312 23.87%
     Total 28,102,629$    68,144,578$        22,938,082$    33.66%

FY	18‐19
Revenues Actual	to	Date Actual	to	Date YTD	%

November‐18 Adjusted	Budget November‐19 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 6,662,414$      18,092,380$        599,255$         3.31%
Charges for Services 9,558,517        22,522,489          7,890,454        35.03%
Revenue Other Agencies 6,922,225        16,382,031          2,322,721        14.18%
Other Revenues 3,221,694        11,147,678          525,331           4.71%
     Total 26,364,850$    68,144,578$        11,337,761$    16.64%

Expenditures
Labor 11,708,636$    31,024,058$        11,681,188$    37.65%
Non-Labor 16,393,992      37,120,520          11,256,894      30.33%
     Total 28,102,629$    68,144,578$        22,938,082$    33.66%

FY	18‐19 Actual Total	
Collections Actual November‐19 Collected	F‐YTD

Debt Setoff 42,896$           1,397$                  5,572$             
Surplus 160,832$         95$                       11,404$           

OVERALL	SUMMARY
FY	19‐20

MAJOR	CATEGORIES
FY	19‐20

SELECTED	OTHER	INFORMATION



 

 
 

1 

 
PLANNING 
November 2019 
Prepared By: Debra Creighton 
Date Prepared: December 3, 2019 
 
During the month of November, the Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial and 
residential building and sign permits. Staff continues to prepare for upcoming meetings and has 
overseen contracted projects for the MTP Update, a marketing contract for GWTA and landscaping 
maintenance for Welcome to Goldsboro signs and enhancement areas. On-going projects include 
tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation-related documents and preparation of case 
reports. Code Enforcement issues $25.00 parking violation tickets within the downtown area or 
upon notification elsewhere in the City. During the month of November, eleven (11) tickets were 
issued (see below).   
 

Parked in Wrong Direction 6

Parked in Proximity to Fire Hydrant 0

Parked in a Prohibited Area (No Parking Zone) 2

Other (Bus Loading Zone, Crosswalk, Sidewalk) 3

 
 
2019  Jan  Feb  Mar  Apr  May  June  July  Aug  Sept  Oct  Nov  Dec  Total  Average 

Site/Subdivision Plans  

Planning 
Commission 

3  6  6  5  5  5  5  4  4  2  5     50  5 

Staff Level  0  1  0  3  1  7  7  3  1  2  2     27  2 

  

Rezonings  0  2  3  3  1  3  3  2  3  0  2     22  2 

Historic District Commission  

Commission 
Review 

0  0  2  1  1  1  1  1  1  0  0     8  1 

Staff Review  1  1  1  1  3  3  2  0  0  1  0     13  1 

  

Code Enforcement  

Grass 
Cutting  
# Lots 

0  0  0  0  40  98  15  69  51  27  6     306  44 

Grass 
Cutting  
Payments 

0  0  0  0  $4,915  $7,025   $1,145  $5,225  $2,880  $2,325  $695     $24,210  $3,459 

Junk 
Vehicles 

4  4  3  4  5  6  2  8  1  3  2      42  4 

Tagged 
Vehicles 

0  0  0  20  30  18  28  15  15  35   28     189  17 

Illegal Signs 
Removed 

444  79  30  197  20  25  35  0  20  4  190     1044  95 

Bags of 
Litter Picked 
Up 

388  551  602  555  522  305  367  307  268  344  291     4500  409 

 



 

 
 

1 

ENGINEERING	DEPARTMENT	
NOVEMBER	2019	
Prepared	by:		Guy	M.	Anderson,	P.	E.	 	 																		 	
Date	Prepared:		12‐04‐19	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Stoney	Creek	Greenway			

 Staff is awaiting authorization to construct from NCDOT;	
 Project manual and final estimate are complete; 
 Anticipated advertisement for bids, upon NCDOT approval, in summer 2020. 

	
Phase	IV	Sewer	Collection	Rehabilitation		

 Staff is processing change orders for additional work and increase in contract time;	
 Project is 85% complete for original contract.	

	
Center/Holly	Street	Water	Tank	Painting			

 Staff is in the process of reviewing final pay application for this project.	
 
SJAFB	Sewer	Outfall	Improvements		

 Staff is coordinating having the sewer line CCTV work completed to determine if sewer line can be 
lined using CIPP; 

 Anticipated advertisement for bids in January 2020. 
 

2019	Infrastructure	Recovery	(Goldenleaf	Foundation)		
 City Council awarded contact to Herring-Rivenbark, Inc. on October 7, 2019 for the low bid amount 

of $886,590;	
 At the preconstruction conference held on November 13th the notice to proceed date was set for 

November 18th with a contract completion date of May 17, 2020.	
 
2018	Street	Improvement	Project		

 This paving project includes Oak Hill Drive from North Berkeley Boulevard to Green Drive and East 
Chestnut Street from South Slocumb Street to South Leslie Street;	

 The revised project scope and design will be advertised for bids in the next couple of months.	
	
2018	Street	Resurfacing	

 Staff is in the process of reviewing final pay application for this project.	
 
2018	Wastewater	Collection	System	Rehabilitation	Project		

 Additional work added by Change Order No. 1 is underway;	
 Project is 98% complete.	

 
2018	Virginia	Street	Storm	Sewer	Improvements		

 Staff is researching alternatives to correcting the drainage situation.	
	
	
	



2 

Ash	Street/Alabama	Avenue	Sidewalk		
 Preliminary construction plans have been started; 
 Duke Energy has been contacted to relocate needed poles; 
 Anticipated advertisement for bids in January/February 2020.	

	
2017	Wastewater	System	Improvements		

 Design plans and specifications are being reviewed by NCDEQ;	
 Project advertisement anticipated in February 2020.	

	
2017	Water	System	Improvements	

 Design plans and specifications are being developed;	
 Design plans and specifications are anticipated to be sent for NCDEQ review in February 2020.	

	
2019	Water	System	Improvements	

 Received the NCDEQ Letter of Intent to Fund; 
 Staff is coordinating with the Finance Department to determine if the City of Goldsboro can afford 

the project; 
 Once Finance Department determines affordability, staff will develop a Request for Qualifications 

for design services and advertise in January or February 2020. 
	
2019	Street	Resurfacing	

 Final list was approved during the August 5th Council meeting; 
 Staff is working to develop a more detailed cost estimate to determine if additional street segments 

can be added; 
 Once the detailed estimate is developed, staff will begin putting together the contract documents 

and advertise for bids; 
 Anticipated advertise for bids in January 2020. 

	
Best	Management	Practices	(BMPs)	Inspections			

 Approximately 308 BMPs have been approved and 258 BMPS have been constructed to date;	
 All BMP inspections completed through the month November 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

1 

2019 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg.
Total Incidents: 196 191 203 209 241 207 215 199 223 235 227 235
Structure Fires: 5 3 2 4 1 1 4 2 1 10 3 4

EMS Calls: 72 84 79 76 76 79 75 74 68 84 78 85
Vehicle  Accidents: 27 30 40 33 39 27 22 36 33 38 36 36

Fire  Alarms: 33 33 29 40 54 54 47 46 66 47 44 49
O ther: 59 41 53 56 71 46 67 41 55 56 66 61

Training Hours: 3122 3211 3263 1804 2128 1788 1885 2995 1757 2061 1963 2598
Safety Car Seat Checks: 3 8 5 4 5 8 9 10 6 6 4 7

Inspections: 94 86 123 118 113 71 91 114 116 107 100 113
2018 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg.

Total Incidents: 234 165 196 197 222 182 195 229 375 223 205 197 218
Structure Fires: 3 6 2 2 6 2 1 2 4 4 2 3 3

EMS Calls: 63 52 63 68 89 69 71 87 138 79 87 69 78
Vehicle  Accidents: 49 22 39 27 38 34 38 31 36 34 41 29 35

Fire  Alarms: 49 34 44 35 38 38 47 59 80 50 35 45 46
O ther: 70 51 48 65 51 39 38 50 117 56 40 51 56

Training Hours: 2683 2871 2149 2172 1962 1878 2776 3228 1465 1909 2138 1163 2199
Safety Car Seat Checks: 2 10 10 9 10 4 3 8 3 11 6 11 7

Inspections: 52 67 68 95 102 106 99 142 64 19 69 65 79

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
November, 2019 
Prepared By: CL/JD 
Date Prepared: 12.4.19 

Fire	Prevention	and	Outreach	
 11/1 – Public Education – Bright Beginning Christian Center Day Care 
 11/2 – Public Education – Kangaroo Sams 
 11/6, 11/20 – Community Service - Car Seat Check - Station 2 
 11/9 – Public Education – First Responder’s Day - New Hope United Methodist Church 
 11/11 – Public Education – Station 1 Tour 
 11/13 – Community Service – Southeastern Medical Oncology Center 
 11/13, 11/20 – Community Service – Lunch Buddy Program – Carver Heights Elementary 
 11/17 – Public Education – Cars & Cops – Berkeley Mall 
 11/17 – Community Service – Toys for Tots – Berkeley Mall 
 11/19 – Public Education – Cub Scouts – Station 1 Tour 
 11/23 – Community Service – Kirkwood Retirement Village 
 11/26 – Public Education – Downtown Lights Up 

	
  

	
	

Working	Structure	Fires	
 11/4 – 911 Hugh St 
 11/15 – 901 Sycamore St 
 11/19 – 401 N George St 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Working	Vehicle	Fires	
 11/26 - 124 E Mulberry St	

	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

 
 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, 
Haz-Mat Calls, Grass Fires and Unauthorized Burning. 



 

 
 

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
NOVEMBER, 2019 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  December 9, 2019  
 
Total IBR offenses (homicide, rape, robbery, assault, burglary, motor vehicle theft, arson and fraud) for 
November 2019 were 226 compared to 260 for October 2019. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $344,456 was reported stolen while property with an estimated 
value of $90,791 was recovered. 
 
Officers arrested 136 people and 387 citations were issued during the month. There were 29 drug-
related charges.  
 
There were 1 report(s) of assault on an officer.  

 
Revenue collected for October 2019 included: 
 Police Reports   $ 222.00
 Fingerprints   $ 25.00
 Special Events    $ 20.00
    Total     $ 267.00   
      

IBR	COMPARISON	&	TREND	
2019	 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug.	 Sept Oct	 Nov Dec Total	 AVG	

OFFENSE             
Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0  0  0   2 0.2 
Rape(&attempts) 1 0 0 2 1 0 2 1 0  0  1   8 0.8 
Robbery 6 4 5 4 5 1 3 5 4  4  4   45 4.5 
Aggravated Assault 7 8 10 5 15 14 9 10 13  16  10   117 11.7 
Simple Assault 30 30 36 24 29 35 33 49 42  36  25   369 36.9 
Breaking & Entering 33 31 24 35 35 22 34 25 30  30  26   325 32.5 
Larceny 157 92 104 135 99 138 134 138 127  142  116   1382 138.2 
Motor Vehicle Theft 7 9 11 8 5 7 6 7 9 7   11   87 8.7 
Arson 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0   1 0.1 
Fraud 24 37 35 19 25 35 24 35 18 25  33   310 31.0 
TOTALS	 265 212 225 232 214 254 245 270 243 260 0 0 2646 264.6 

2018	 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug. Sept Oct Nov Dec Total	 AVG	

OFFENSE             
Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 3 0.3 
Rape(&attempts) 2 1 0 2 1 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 10 0.8 
Robbery 1 10 7 5 4 6 6 5 2 2 3 8 59 4.9 
Aggravated Assault 6 12 11 13 15 13 17 9 17 12 7 11 143 11.9 
Simple Assault 34 29 55 34 32 32 24 46 43 25 24 41 419 34.9 
Breaking & Entering 40 27 23 31 37 41 36 27 30 31 35 39 397 33.1 
Larceny 129 115 126 134 132 121 127 110 107 96 108 142 1447 120.6 
Motor Vehicle Theft 7 4 7 7 7 5 6 11 6 12 13 8 93 7.8 
Arson 0 2 0 0 0 1 1 1 0 3 0 2 10 0.8 
Fraud 46 33 22 34 42 38 42 35 25 34 23 34 408 34.0 

TOTALS 265 233 251 260 270 257 261 244 234 216 213 285 2989 249.1 

 



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation 
November - 2019 
Prepared By: Joshua Shockley/Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared: 12/05/2019 
 
 November 1st – NC Special Olympics – Fall Games in Charlotte (15 participants) 
 November 2nd – American Foundation for Suicide Prevention held their Suicide Walk @ Herman Park 
 November 2nd & 3rd – NCYS USYS Girls State Cup (2,700 Participants / Spectators) 
 November 9th & 10th – US Quidditch – Mid-Atlantic Championship @ BMSC (1,600+ Participants / Spectators) 
 November 13th & 14th – Wayne County Special Olympics – Bowling @ AMF Lanes – school ages (135 participants) 
 November 22nd – 24th – NCFC Girls Showcase Soccer Tournament @ BMSC (5,360 Participants / Spectators) 
 November 26th - Southeast Seniors Tournament @ Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course (45 participants) 
 November 30th – SWAC Soccer Tournament @ BMSC (2,295 Participants / Spectators)  

 

2019	 JAN	 FEB	 MAR	 APR	 MAY	 JUN	 JUL	 AUG	 SEP	 OCT	 NOV	 DEC	
AVG	

Herman	Park		      
Program Revenue $1,805 $3045 $1,826 $2,928 $3,225 $7,242 $16,676 $8,574 $690 $1,141 $412  $4,434 

Rental Revenue  $860 $1,390 $2,455 $1,770 $2,270 $3,490 $2,765 $2,545 $1,140 $1,470 $1,105  $1,933 

Facility Usage 1,735 2,126 1,691 1,788 1,901 1,694 1,568 2,013 868 985 655  1,548 

Expenditures N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $22,141 $8,837 $5,666 $4,724 $2,564  $8,786 

              

WA	Foster	Rec	Center	              

Program Revenue $200 $1,180 $160 $205 $300 $2,890 $4,695 $3,235 $90 $40 $30  $1,184 

Rental Revenue $350 $1,275 $350 $1,100 $4,600 $1,600 $1,200 $2,830 $1,180 $1,200 $1,135  $1,529 

Facility Usage 7899 7,848 8,320 7,525 9,663 8,624 7,452 5,007 2,570 5,081 5,526  6,865 

Expenditures N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $32,727 $18,189 $9,745 $10,914 $10,025  $16,320 

              

Specialized	Recreation	              

Program Revenue --- $102 $94 --- --- --- ---- $230 --- --- ---  $142 

Rental Revenue --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- ---  --- 

Facility Usage 413 388 467 348 1,675 277 368 562 365 459 516  531 

Expenditures N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $1,851 $2,436 $1,001 $2,641 $4,306  $2,447 

              

Senior	Programs	&	Pools	              

Program Revenue $242 $264 $277 $309 $2,396 $6,124 $7,939 $2,621 $2,415 $309 $249  $2,104 

Rental Revenue --- --- --- --- --- $550 $425 $375 --- --- ---  $450 

Facility Usage 1,532 1,723 1,674 3,097 2,517 4,920 5,825 3,161 1,283 1,520 1,440  2,608 

Expenditures N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $20,542 $13,897 $2,682 $1,645 $1,842  $8,122 

              
Athletics,	Field	&	
Picnic	Shelters,	BMSC              

Program Revenue $5,206 $3,573 $8451 $2,229 $12,128 $11,459 $4,963 $6,487 $9,366 $23,044 $16,866  $9,434 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $1,600 $150 $610 $890 $1,250 $1,480 $1,300 $795 $1,755 $898 $1,085  $1,074 

Facility Usage 15,250 14,340 13,150 20,470 42,520 27,285 11,372 8,245 17,022 $29,693 23,738  20,280 

Expenditures N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $13,842 $8,892 $19,005 $54,041 $26,867  $24,529 

              

Golf	Course	              

Revenues $43,326 $22,930 $28,167 $52,962 $55,502 $65,797 $68,373 $49,754 $52,843 $60,173 $20,031  $47,260 

Expenditures $33,159 $44,676 $47,976 $41,149 $41,387 $71,439 $43,750 $60,039 $44,984 $39,426 $30,373  $45,305 

Rounds of Golf 808 1,088 1,741 1,799 2,528 2,812 2,511 2,659 2,316 2,139 985  1,944 

Net $10,167 $21,746 $19,809 $11,813 $14,115 $5,642 $24,623 $10,285 $7,859 $20,747 $10,342  $1,955 

              

Special	Events	              

Sponsorships $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1.450 $1,990 $0 $0 $0 $0  $312 

Participation 0 0 125 3,000 0 180 256 60 40 2680 0  576 

Expenditures --- --- --- --- --- --- $2,345 --- $1,305 $1,538 $510  $1,139 

              

TOTAL	REVENUE	 $53,589 $33,810 $42,390 $62,393 $81,671 $102,082 $109,901 $77,446 $69,479 $88,275   $69,268 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR             
$761,949 

 



 

 
**Expenditures include part-time labor cost and facility operational cost but do not include full-time labor  

cost, loan/bond payments and electricity for the areas with the exception of our Municipal Golf Course.  All of 
these costs are included for our Municipal Golf Course Expenditures. 

 

 

2018  JAN  FEB  MAR  APR  MAY  JUN  JUL  AUG  SEP  OCT  NOV  DEC 
AVG Herman Park and 

W A Foster Centers             

Program Revenue  $3,906 $3,821 $2,091 $3,153 $2,899 $12,306 $18,807 $8,450 $815 $400 $0 $2,497  $4,929 
Rental Revenue   $1,610 $1,385 $4,572 $3,927 $2,625 $2,647 $3,660 $4,660 $2585 $1195 $1575 $2,327  $2,731 

Facility Usage  11,813 10,235 11,470 13,633 10,862 10,576 9,700 9,415 5724 7335 8234 8719 9,810 
              
Specialized Rec. 
and Senior Citizens, Pools          
Program Revenue  $191 $264 $311 $231 $850 $10,281 $6,354 $3,621 $838.50 $208 $1670 $214 $2,086 

Facility Usage  5,890 2,220 1,616 3,107 3,662 6,369 4,840 2,689 1090 1392 1423 1354 2,971 
          
Athletics and Field 
Picnic Shelters, MSCX          

Program Revenue  $1,500 $2,430 $1,560 $195 $920 $3,880 $2,197 $2,960 $0 $3,690 $2091 $1,840 $1,939 

Field/Shelter Rental  $0 $60 $0 $1,165 $1,250 $1,480 $1,120 $,1310 $1410 $610 $200 $0 $717 

Facility Usage  3,459 9,382 3,605 5,315 9,725 4,867 7,890 9100 13,275 26,225 18645 10052 10,128 
          

Golf Course          
Revenues  $44,090 $30,092 $30,483 $64,936 $38,070 $47,941 $58,197 $36,486 $29,770 $56,828 $19,518 $12,515 $39,077 

Expenditures  $44,811 $60,293 $49,545 $56,766 $103,701 $56,726 $61,129 $74,147 $241,017 $45,259 $39,270 $209,995 $86,888 
          
Special Events          

Sponsorships  $1,500 $0 $ $200 $225 $200 $1,012 $0 $32,100 $2000 $42 $1000 $3,480 

Attendance  0 0 2,000 215 50 215 315 160 12,662 1700 375 4650 1862 

TOTAL REVENUE  $52,797 $38,052 $39,017 $73,807 $46,839 $78,735 $91,347 $57,488 $67,519 $64,931 $25,097 $20,395 $54,669 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR    $656,024 



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
November 2019 
Prepared By: Ashlin Glatthar, Amber Herring and Josie Jenkins 
Date Prepared: 12/03/19 
 

 Inquiries were fulfilled for the month of October by the TTO—392 inquiries, 69 incoming phone 

calls, and 42 visitors to the office. 

 Total hotel revenue generated in October was $1,995,514, which is down 18.2% YOY. November 

revenue not yet released. 

 For the month, TTO Facebook page had 87 new page likes. Instagram page has 68 new followers. 

Twitter page gained 7 new followers. 	

 US Quidditch Mid-Atlantic Regional Championships took place November 9-10, 2019 at the Bryan 

Multi-Sports Complex. The USQ reported that it was the most well-attended regional tournament 

they’ve ever had from both teams and spectators. They were very pleased with the facilities and 

level of care provided by city staff. TTO reported the economic impact from the event was 

$64,000.  

 TTO has been awarded the 2019 ConventionSouth Annual Readers’ Choice Award as a top 

destination for meeting planners in that state of North Carolina. 

 TTO is partnering with Visit NC to enroll in the new Google DMO Program. This program will 

enhance our ability to influence the quality and depth of the content that lives in Google when 

people are looking up information about Goldsboro-Wayne County. The program also provides an 

educational portal for local businesses to use to learn how to optimize their search engine results.   	

 The History Channel’s “It’s How You Get There” film crew is scheduled to film the first week of 

April. Confirmed dates will follow soon.	

 TTO met with the local hoteliers to discuss upcoming events that affect market demand.	

 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2019‐20	 $82,004 $88,424 $92,348 $85,480 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $	 $87,064	

2018‐19	 $76,448 $71,981 $72,429 $89,311 $85,534 $49,108 $104,633 $73,949 $59,855 $98,520 $86,921 $141,913 $1,010,602	 $84,217	

2017‐18	 $81,794 $70,849 $71,323 $66,920 $68,268 $60,726 $43,748 $51,800 $53,393 $68,272 $69,725 $78,449 $785,269	 $65,439	

	             	 	

* Tourism is also working with Finance to redesign the financial report to reflect true operating expense 
and income figures for the department.  



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-109 

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION 
FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY ROOSEVELT JOHNSON   

AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
FOR MORE THAN 27 YEARS 

WHEREAS, Roosevelt Johnson retires on January 1, 2020 as a Compost Plant Operator with the Public 
Utilities Department of the City of Goldsboro with more than 27 years of service; and 

WHEREAS, Roosevelt began his career on April 22, 1992 as a Laborer I with the Public Works 
Department; and 

WHEREAS, On July 14, 1993, Roosevelt was promoted to Equipment Operator I with the Public 
Works Department; and  

WHEREAS, On June 26, 2002, Roosevelt was transferred to the Public Utilities Department as a Motor 
Equipment Operator II; and   

WHEREAS, In January 2014, Roosevelt’s position was reclassified as a Compost Plant Operator with 
the Public Utilities Department where he has served until his retirement; and 

WHEREAS, Roosevelt has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has 
gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and 

WHEREAS, The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of 
themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Roosevelt Johnson their 
deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that: 

1. We express to Roosevelt our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity and good health in
his future endeavors.

2. This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be
in full force and effect from and after this 16th day of December, 2019.

______________________ 
Mayor 

Attested by: 

_______________________ 
City Clerk 

Item M 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-110 

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION 
FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY REGINALD HEDRICK 

AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
FOR MORE THAN 24 YEARS 

WHEREAS, Reginald Hedrick retires on January 1, 2020 as a Water Plant Operator IV with the Public 
Utilities Department of the City of Goldsboro with more than 24 years of service; and 

WHEREAS, Reginald began his career on April 12, 1995 as a Water Plant Operator with the Public 
Utilities Department; and 

WHEREAS, On September 29, 1997, Reginald was promoted to Water Plant Operator II with the 
Public Utilities Department; and  

WHEREAS, On March 10, 1999, Reginald was promoted to Water Plant Operator III with the Public 
Utilities Department; and  

WHEREAS, On May 23, 2007, Reginald was promoted to Water Plant Operator IV with the Public 
Utilities Department where he has served until his retirement; and 

WHEREAS, Reginald has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained 
the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and 

WHEREAS, The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of 
themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Reginald Hedrick their 
deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that: 

1. We express to Reginald our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity and good health in
his future endeavors.

2. This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be
in full force and effect from and after this 16th day of December, 2019.

______________________ 
Mayor 

Attested by: 

_______________________ 
City Clerk 

Item N 


	Agenda 12-16-19
	ws Item c-1 Marker Memorial Policy
	ws Item c-2 Memorial Marker Policy
	ws Item d-1 Arnold Flowers Lease Memo
	ws Item d-2 Flowers Lease
	ws Item d-3 Flowers Timber & Land Inc Map
	Item A Minutes 11 18 19
	Item B Gigi Eason Retirement Resolution
	Item C  Julie Metz Resolution
	Item D CU-13-19 Agenda Memo PH_Longhorn Internet Cafe
	Item E CU-14-19 Agenda Memo PH_Zackell Perry
	Item F Annexation_Luis Jimenez Agenda Memo PH
	Item G-1 Project Public Hearing Memo
	Item G-2 Final Aram Performance Agreement
	Item H CU-12-19 Agenda Memo TC final approval
	Item I 2019-12-16 Surplus Property Upset Bid-611 E Pine St
	Agenda Item 2019-12-16 Disposal of Real Property 611 E Pine
	Resolution Authorizing Upset Bid Process COG 611 E Pine St
	GIS 611 E Pine St
	611 E Pine St - GIS MAP
	Offer to Purchase Lewis, Willie 2019-11-21
	2019-11-14 Lewis Willie and Easter Bid Deposit Ck for $85.75_Redacted

	Item J-1 FY19-20 CDBG & HOME (Budget Admendment)
	Item J-2 FY19-20 Budget Amendment (Ordinance)
	Item K Change Order No. 13 - Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehab Project
	Item L Monthly Departmental Reports
	Item L-1 HR Monthly Report
	Item L-2 CR Monthly Report
	Item L-3 Paramount_GEC Monthly Report
	Item L-4 Inspections Monthly Report
	Item L-5 Downtown Monthly Report
	Item L-6 IT Monthly Report
	Item L-7 PW Monthly Report
	Item L-8 Public Utilities Monthly Report
	Item L-9 Finance Monthly Report
	Item L-10 Planning Monthly Report
	Item L-11 Engineering Monthly Report
	Item L-12 Fire Monthly Report
	Item L-13 PD Monthly Report
	Item L-14 Recreation_GEC Monthly Report
	Item L-15 Tourism Monthly Report
	Item M Roosevelt Johnson Retirement Resolution
	Item N Reginald Hedrick Retirement Resolution



